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Corporate Profile

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group’s production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights
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Yang, Tou-Hsiung
BV
Chairman Z &

Armed with modern technology and
sound management, we have successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the consumers’ tastes and demands.
RERAANERXERAEE RMHAZBEEER
MAEHEENOKMENK -



Chairman’s Statement

Looking at the global economy in 2023, at the impact of
international geopolitics and inflation, it was sluggish with demand
on the weak side. Economic growth of major economies, including
the US, the EU, the PRC and Asia overall, was affected and the
Group's revenue also felt the blow. At the same time, although the
rise in price of various raw materials had eased, prices were still
at a high level. Thus, the Group’s profit though recovered slightly,
was restrained. In addition, the interest rate hike in the US has
affected financial markets worldwide as well as the interest rates
and exchange rates of various countries, hitting the already fragile
economic recovery and consumption sentiment turned conservative.
Vietnam is the Group’s largest market and her economy relies
mainly on exports. As markets worldwide weakened, the country’s
export sales was harmed and consumption weakened, resulting in
a slowdown of overall economic growth. Vietnam’s GDP grew only
5.05% last year, lower than the 6.5% originally forecasted for the
year.

The Group’s revenue from operation for the year reached
approximately US$386 million, down by approximately US$64.84
million, or 14.4%, against the previous year. Due to the economic
downturn and decline in market demand, the revenue of several
major products of the Group, including MSG, starch sugar,
hydrochloric acid, soda, and fertilizer and feed, all dropped. Gross
profit for the year was approximately US$55.43 million, with a
gross profit margin of 14.4%, representing an increase gross profit
margin of 4.8% over the previous year. The gross profit improvement
was mainly from the lower costs of the Group with raw materials
prices dropping because of the sluggish global economy and shrink
in product demands. In addition, interest rates of borrowings rose
markedly this year, so financing cost increased. With the increase in
gross profit, net profit for the year was approximately US$7 million,
a significant improvement from net loss of US$4.38 million in the
previous year, and net profit margin was 1.8%.
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Chairman’s Statement

Sales of the Group's products in major markets mostly declined due
to the lack-luster economic situation. In the Vietnamese market, due
to lower market demand and keen competition, it was hard to raise
the prices of MSG, starch, soda and fertilizers, as a result, revenue
from the market decreased by around 11%. The Group’s operations
in the PRC were still under the weather due to the weak economy
affecting sales of different products, as a result, revenue from the
PRC market saw a 12.3% drop year-on-year. In Japan, apart from her
prevailingly weak economy, there was severe market competition that
stifled demand for MSG and modified starch, hence revenue from
the market fell by approximately 14.5% compared with the previous
year. In the ASEAN market, the sales of major products, namely MSG
and modified starch, decreased due to cut-throat price competition,
resulting in a 13.4% year-on-year decline in revenue from the market.
In addition, in the U.S., the drastic rise in interest rate to curb
inflation has dealt a blow to economic recovery, leaving consumption
sentiment and demand hanging in the balance and the sales of starch
sugar products felt the bigger impact. As a result, revenue from
the market slid by approximately 32.5%. As for subsequent sales
momentum in the market, it remains to be seen.

SHEEREE AERESTEHTEMKE
PEBEEMZERKSEMT A -ETHmS
BB BB BRITEABNSEERERNTISE
KEE NMEEBETSHRFZEHLUIREA
EWROENM% - ERXFERETEENE
B RAEMERKCERS SRINEAME 88
ERZHESIFE, NP EEESWERE
HENI23%N T B B BEATHBEREE
Bk MERBHHIBHEF  FEEHBIBRIEER
BHEBRMEREE FEERRERNNERE L
BRAATBN145% HEHMBUZERRE
BHRFFE TEHEERKBHEEERME
2R FERAREERRILEE 2 2ERAHH
TE13.4% BRItbZ 4 EEHHBKREBME N
BEER AN ERLEER SREFRMD
TR HPhBMBEERHEESZERL
FEAEBRREANMNERTEN32.5% BiEgm
BREZHERRNEBEHR-

Annual Report 2023 F 3R



Chairman’s Statement

By product category, it was hard for the Group to raise prices of its
main MSG and seasonings products due to the weak economy in
Vietnam, Japan, the PRC and major export markets, and declining
demand and competition, which resulted in a 16.7% decrease in
revenue against the previous year. As for modified starch, which
is another major starch product of the Group, with the Company
continuing to promote new product specifications and high value-
added products, sales of modified starch grew steadily in such
markets as the United States, Europe and Vietnam. However, starch
sugar product of the Company recorded a relatively sharp decline in
revenue due to decreasing demand and major customers digesting
their inventories. All factors taken into account, revenue of starch
products and starch sugar products for the year decreased by
approximately 10.8% compared with the previous year. However,
seeing great market potential in and the development prospect
of the product category, the Group has kept developing relevant
products as well as their extensions, with the aim of developing
diversified products and new products with higher added value. As
for hydrochloric acid and soda products in the specialty chemicals
category, they saw a decline in market demand in Vietnam and
competition sparked by their international prices dropping during the
year, and that affected the overall revenue from specialty chemicals,
dragging it down by a significant 25.3%. Sales of fertilizer and
feed products of the Group were affected by the continuing decline
in international prices of chemical fertilizers and urea, and the
market tended to think the drop would continue hence it should
wait-and-see. As for feed business, sales declined due to spread of
diseases in farms, high breeding costs and weak demand in some
markets. Overall sales of fertilizer and feed products fell by about
3.9% compared with the previous year. For trade products, with
consumer goods industry in Vietnam growing rapidly, the Group is
cooperating with a number of internationally renowned brands in
product distribution so as to increase the number of product items it
operates. In addition, trade products distributed by the Group in the
PRC, including bulk food ingredients and coffee beans, with demand
varying from region to region and sales correspondingly, overall
revenue only decreased slightly by approximately 5.7% against the
previous year.
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking ahead at 2024, the economic and business environment
will remain rather complex impacted by such factors as the ongoing
Russia-Ukraine War and other geopolitical risks, high energy and
raw material prices, unstable supply, global inflation, and volatile
exchange and interest rates, affecting the Group’s operating risks
as well as opportunities during the year. Although the prices of
raw materials, energy and freight came down a bit last year, which
helped stabilize production costs and profit to some extent, the
Group expects the supply of various international and local raw
materials to be uncertain this year. It sees inflation risks prevailing,
consumption demand still needing to catch up and keener market
competition for various products. These factors will pose challenges
to the Company’s operations in the near term and the Company will
keep a close watch on situations and respond accordingly. In view
of this business environment, on top of more flexibly strengthening
daily operations, the Group is accelerating development of new
products and honing its technical capabilities. At the same time, it is
hastening forging strategic alliances and has begun cooperating with
several internationally renowned and excellent enterprises, embarking
on production and sales related cooperation and joint ventures in
the field of food and fertilizers, so as to speed up introducing new
products and new businesses. In the future, the Group will continue
to increase the pace and effort of building strategic alliances that it
may benefit from the leverage its allies provide and realize higher
efficiency, plus explore more diverse business areas.

Although at the impact of various short-term factors in the economic
environment, economic activities in Vietnam have slowed down
slightly, the market has an outstanding business environment and the
brace of such trade agreements as EVFTA, UKVFTA and RCEP signed
with countries and regions including ASEAN member countries,
the EU and the UK. Thus, after the short-term uncertainty is over,
it can expect to see great development potential. Therefore, while
remaining cautiously optimistic about its business, the Group will,
on top of stabilizing the foundation of its operations and enhancing
their flexibility and agility, also actively embark on new operations via
forming strategic alliances with a focus on new products and new
business areas. The Group believes its operations, resting on solid
strategies, will continue to advance and develop on the right track.
Well aware of the opportunities and also their responsibilities in the
changing business environment, all members of the Group will strive
to seize those opportunities, with a pioneering vision and a positive
attitude, to achieve greater breakthroughs and development in its
results and operations.

By Order of the Board

Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

19 March 2024
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As a successful long-term player in a market with significant entry barriers,
Vedan International has distinct competitive advantages that add real
value to its products. With advanced expertise in large-scale fermentation
technology, starch processing conversion technology and chemical and
electro-chemical technology, Vedan International is developing new products
which represent the latest breakthroughs in industrial science and look set to
be major profit drivers in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The year 2023 was full of challenges. Global economic growth
continued to slow due to the ongoing impact of international
geopolitics, tightening of monetary policies and the weakening
of global trade and investment. The major risks included the
continuation of the Russia-Ukraine war, the instability in the
political and economic situation in the Middle East, increased
variability in related commodity markets, higher borrowing
costs due to US dollar interest rate hikes, continued inflation,
weaker than expected economic activity in China, the impact
of geopolitics on global finance, trade, investment, food and
energy mobility, and the impact of climate change.

Vietnam's annual economic growth rate fell from 8.02%
in 2022 to 5.05% in 2023, lower than the Vietnamese
government’s target of 6.5% at the beginning of the year.
Cumulative exports and imports for the 12 months of
2023 were lower than in 2022, falling by 4.4% and 9.2%
respectively. The total import and export trade volume
decreased by 6.77% compared with the same period in 2022,
maintaining a surplus of US$28 billion. The economic downturn
in major export markets and the decline in external demand
led to a slowdown in exports, making Vietnam less prosperous
than in 2022. Rising energy and food costs in Vietnam pushed
up consumer prices. The average annual growth rate of the
consumer price index in 2023 was 3.25%, but was well below
the target inflation rate of 4.5%.

With the easing of the pandemic-related factors in China in
2023, the industrial chain and supply chain gradually recovered.
The actual economic growth target for 2023 was 5.0%, an
increase of 2.0% over 2022. However, the recovery of services
and consumption in China was relatively slow, with demand
not returning to pre-pandemic levels and inflation relatively
modest. The average annual growth rate of China’s consumer
price index in 2023 was 0.2%, indicating a limited increase in
consumer market demand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's revenue reached approximately US$386,171,000 in
2023, a decrease of 14.4%, or US$64,836,000, over the same
period last year. The main reason for the decline in revenue
was the slowdown in market sentiment and demand, with the
Group's main product, MSG, being affected and suffering a
decline in revenue. However, benefiting from the slowdown
in the prices of raw materials and energy, the Group took
advantage of the opportunity of the falling prices of bulk
raw materials this year and improved its gross profit margin
over last year. The overall revenue of modified starch, natural
starch and maltose declined due to conservative orders from
major customers, weak European and American markets,
declining industrial demand, and insufficient consumption
motivation amid the US Federal Reserve's interest rate hike
and exchange rate fluctuations. Specialty chemicals saw a
decline in both revenue and profit compared with last year
as a result of weak sentiment in Vietnam and lower demand.
The average selling price of hydrochloric acid was reduced
due to a sharp drop in demand and price competition among
industry peers, resulting in a significant decrease in revenue
and gross profit compared with last year. Regarding fertilizers
and feed products, the Group focused on consolidating its
sales channels and adjusting the product mix, and sought
to develop higher-margin products. In addition, among the
Group’s other products, product distribution in partnership
with internationally renowned brands in, aimed at diversifying
the Group's operations, showed small-scale growth in 2023.
As for the trade products distributed by the Group in the PRC,
including bulk food ingredients and coffee beans, the sales
volume increased slightly due to varied demands in different
regions.

The Group recorded a decrease in revenue in 2023, but its gross
profit was US$55,430,000, an increase of US$12,081,000 from
2022, benefiting from proper cost control. Gross profit margin
was 14.4% in 2023, up 4.8 percentage points compared with
2022. Net profit margin increased from -1.0% in the same
period in 2022 to 1.8%, with a profit of US$7,001,000, an
increase of US$11,385,000 over the same period last year.

EE2023F & WEL386,171,000
EXN OREFERPTHRI44%TRED
64,836,000 IR TN EERRAA
EHEERETEERRERE E@E
EELKBENERZSIZEMTE B
BREMNEREREBE EREERT
B RMER TR FERNEMNRE
KERA; EURD S RKARD EH
MER2023F R B® EEEABETH X
BAREZESEEET TEXPTES
BRT BMERSLBRES EXBKRKT
oOHBBNAR FEEEWTR; 15
CERETUESRERNEZET BKT
o ERRBIBEREETR HEf>
HBAERAERERAEEBERER
2, PHEERAERE B REER &
EERERLD BENERNEZEEEES
BREARERER WHBESENE
fholtbsh > ERMEME R T o B EE R
MeBESENERNE BLUEMER
BEREMER  T2023FE5/VRIEM
ME MPEAENAREMEMBESEE
SRERE EZHMEEERTE HE
MiRIE R o

EEMR2023FE W TR TERMEA
RIS HE 20235 FH] 455,430,000
7o 820228 £ F1E1012,081,0005 7T
2023FEEFERE14.4% > 82022518
R4 8EE D ; FHEAH2022EH
BA-1.0% EFZE1.8% > ¥F7,001,000%
T BRAFEREEN11,385,000E 5T ©

Annual Report 2023 F 3R



Management Discussion and Analysis

(1) Sales Analysis by Market

(=) HEHED

Revenue from the Vietnamese market in 2023 was
approximately US$173,560,000, a decrease of
approximately US$21,439,000, or 11%, over the
same period in 2022, though its share of revenue
increased from 43.2% to 44.9%. The slowdown in
overseas demand indirectly affected the domestic
market and consumption in export-oriented
Vietnam, causing problems such as lower factory
utilization rate and higher unemployment rate. The
decline in sales volume and revenue from Vietnam
in 2023 was mainly because it was difficult for the
Company to raise the prices of MSG, seasonings,
and specialty chemicals due to poor market
sentiment, lower demand and fierce competition.
This year, the Group is committed to consolidating
sales channels, introducing new products to
enhance the product mix, and flexibly adjusting its
pricing strategy, hoping to drive subsequent sales
and revenue growth.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

Unit: US$'000 Bl F=Erx
January-December 2023 January-December 2022
Cumulative Cumulative Difference
2023%F 20224
1-12A Rzt 1-12B 83t =R
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Country Bx &8 % bkl % ki %
Vietnam ] 173,560 44.9% 194,999 43.2% -21,439 -11.0%
Japan H 71,045 18.4% 83,083 18.4% -12,038 -14.5%
The PRC R 54,965 14.2% 62,663 13.9% -7,698 -12.3%
ASEAN (excluding ~ REMEE
Vietnam) EN2=1i1) 31,185 8.1% 35,991 8.0% -4.806 -13.4%
The US EE| 24,456 6.3% 36,256 8.0% -11,800 -32.5%
Other regions Hitit & 30,960 8.1% 38,015 8.5% -7,055 -18.6%
Total ast 386,171 100.0% 451,007 100.0% -64,836 -14.4%
Vietnam B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2.

Japan

Revenue from the Japanese market in 2023 was
approximately US$71,045,000, a decrease of
approximately US$12,038,000, or 14.5%, when
compared with 2022, and its share of the Group's
revenue was 18.4% in 2023, the same as in
2022. Japan is the Group’s second largest market.
Although the pandemic situation improved in 2023,
Japan’s long-term deflation continued. While the
U.S. dollar interest rates increased, the Bank of
Japan maintained a low interest rate policy, leading
to a sharp depreciation of the yen and rising prices,
affecting domestic consumer sentiment. Affected
by the global economy and sluggish domestic
consumption, the gross domestic product (GDP)
growth rate was -0.4% in the fourth quarter of
2023, a further decline from the third quarter. The
slow economic recovery affected all of the Group's
products, resulting in a decline in sales volume and
revenue. The Group will continue to explore the
new customer base and cross-border applications
in this market for various products, and actively
develop high value-added products.

The PRC

In 2023, revenue from the PRC market was
approximately US$54,965,000, a decrease of
approximately US$7,698,000, or 12.3%, from
2022, and its share of revenue increased from
13.9% to 14.2%. After the pandemic, China’s
economic growth was hindered by sluggish real
estate market transactions and the global economic
slowdown. The withdrawal of a number of foreign-
invested industries and supply chains from China
resulted in an increase in the unemployment rate
and also impacted economic growth. The sales
volume and revenue of the products declined due
to the economic downturn and low consumer
demand in the market. In addition to stabilizing its
seasoning market, the Group continued to expand
its new distributed products, with the aim of driving
revenue growth.

(=) WIZHEDN (@)

2.

I=E:y
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

4.

The ASEAN (excluding Vietnam)

In 2023, revenue from the ASEAN market
(excluding Vietnam) was approximately
US$31,185,000, a decrease of approximately
US$4,806,000, or 13.4%, from 2022, and its share
of revenue increased from 8.0% to 8.1%, mainly
because the decline in sales volume and revenue
of products such as MSG and modified starch was
relatively small compared with other markets. The
ASEAN market has been a key market for the Group
to actively develop, and it is also a member of the
emerging markets. The Group expects to leverage
its industrial advantages to expand this market with
core products, seek new customers and explore new
markets, establish closer partnerships, and deepen
its sales channels to achieve breakthrough sales.

The US

Revenue from the US market in 2023 was
approximately US$24,456,000, a decrease of
approximately US$11,800,000, or 32.5%, from
2022, and its share of revenue decreased from
8.0% to 6.3%. After several interest rate hikes in
the US dollar, although inflation has decreased and
the economy did not experience a sharp decline due
to high interest rates in the short term, the impact
and changes brought about by the hikes are yet
to be seen. The decrease in the Group’s revenue
in 2023 was mainly due to the decline in selling
prices and sales volumes of starch sugar as a result
of declining market demand and high inventory
levels of US customers. The Group will maintain key
channels and customers, consolidate the production
and sales value chain, and continue to develop
products that are in demand in the market to
meet customer needs and improve the quality and
competitiveness of its products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)
6. Other regions

Other regions consist primarily of Taiwan, Korea and
the EU. Total revenue in 2023 was approximately
US$30,960,000, down by approximately
US$7,055,000, or 18.6%, from 2022. Its share
of the Group’s revenue decreased from 8.5% to
8.1%. In some markets, the continued monetary
tightening policies of the world’s major central
banks affected the economy and consumption,
resulting in a decline in market demand for MSG
and CMS-related fertilizers and feed products, and

the resulting turnover.

Sales Analysis by Product
Unit: US$'000

(—) TBHE DR @&

6. EHEmmeE
EmtEeFEAHEESR
EBE BEHB e E
Weo2023F EfthmiHE WA
730,960,000 75 ° #2022
FEiR/L47,055,000FE T
18.6% > & W LEFH8.5%
DEZ 1% o H AT IHEBIK
FERTREZRHBEE KK
FRBEEZ R FE > BfEKFHE
CMSHHRBIEE R 2 ™15 & K
TR EEEEBRE

(2) EmHEDR
Bfi:T%7wT

January-December 2023

January-December 2022

Cumulative Cumulative Difference
2023% 20224
1-12B &3t 1-12B 85t ZE
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Item Y= FTErx % FE7 % FTE7w %
MSG + seasonings Bk 5+ A Bk 230,820 59.8% 277,042 61.4% -46,222 -16.7%
Modified starch+ RN+
native starch+ KRR+
maltose £HiE 66,880 17.3% 74,973 16.6% -8,093 -10.8%
Specialty chemicals REEmM 21,154 5.5% 28,302 6.3% -7,148 -25.3%
Fertilizers and feed AR} R R
products 34,250 8.9% 35,634 7.9% -1,384 -3.9%
Others Hith 33,067 8.5% 35,056 7.8% -1,989 -5.7%
Total &t 386,171 100.0% 451,007 100.0% -64,836 -14.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

7.

MSG and Seasonings

Revenue from MSG and seasoning products in 2023
was approximately US$230,820,000, a decrease
of approximately US$46,222,000, or 16.7%, from
2022, and the segment’s share of the Group’s
revenue decreased from 61.4% to 59.8%. Demand
declined due to weakening economies in major
export markets such as Vietnam, Japan and China,
coupled with competition in various markets, which
made it difficult to increase selling prices, the main
reason for the decrease in revenue.

Modified Starch/Native Starch/Starch Sugar

Revenue from modified starch, native starch and
starch sugar products in 2023 was approximately
US$66,880,000, a decrease of approximately
US$8,093,000, or 10.8%, from 2022, while its
share of the Group’'s revenue expanded from
16.6% to 17.3%. During 2022, customer demand
increased significantly as they wanted to secure
inventory given the pandemic and tight shipping
logistics. However, in the post-pandemic era of
2023, major customers became more cautious
when placing orders due to interest rate hikes
by the Federal Reserve and fluctuating exchange
rates. Moderate revenue growth was recorded for
modified starch products, which benefited from
new specifications and high value-added products
launched by the Company, while starch sugar
products recorded a decline in demand as major
customers needed to digest inventory, resulting in
the underperformance of this product compared
with other products. The Group attaches great
importance to the potential and development of
these products in the market and will focus on
product development and product extensions, with
a view to developing more diversified products and
creating products with added value.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

3.

Specialty Chemicals

Revenue from specialty chemicals in 2023 was
approximately US$21,154,000, a decrease of
approximately US$7,148,000, or 25.3%, from
2022, and its share of the Group’s revenue fell from
6.3% t0 5.5%.

In 2023, demand for soda products in the industry
declined sharply due to the downturn in the
Vietnamese market, and international prices
declined, resulting in a decrease in both turnover
and gross profit. The sales volume and selling prices
of hydrochloric acid products declined, affected by
weaker demand and price competition with peers,
causing overall revenue and profitability to decline.

Fertilizers and Feed Products

In 2023, revenue from fertilizers and feed products
was approximately US$34,250,000, a decrease of
approximately US$1,384,000, or 3.9%, compared
with 2022, and the share of the Group's revenue
increased from 7.9% to 8.9%.

For fertilizers and feed products, the sales
volume of solid products decreased in 2023, as
the continuous decline in international prices of
chemical fertilizers and urea resulted in an overall
bearish market that was largely adopting a wait-
and-see approach, which affected the sales
performance of this segment. For feed products,
sales were affected by weaker market demand as a
result of the outbreak of livestock diseases in some
markets and high breeding costs. The Group will
actively invest in products with new specifications,
develop new customers, improve product structure,
and adopt flexible price adjustment strategies
to boost revenue and profit. It will also continue
to promote high-value-added specialty fertilizer
products and actively develop new sales channels
going forward.

(Z) EmEEDN (@)

3.

#1EE g
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

(1)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

5. Other Products
Revenue from other products in 2023 was
approximately US$33,067,000, a decrease of
approximately US$1,989,000, or 5.7%, compared
with 2022, and the share of the Group's revenue
climbed from 7.8% to 8.5%. In view of the
rapid growth of the consumer goods industry in
Vietnam, the Group cooperated with internationally
renowned brands in product distribution, with
the aim of diversifying and expanding the Group’s
operations, enabling it to record the highest growth
in this segment. Regarding the trade products
distributed by the Group in China, including bulk
food ingredients and coffee beans, the sales volume
was affected by variations of demand from different
regions.

Cassava/Starch

In the 2023/24 production season, output in major
plantation areas such as Thailand, Vietnam and
Cambodia decreased, cassava was in short supply, and
prices remained at relatively high levels throughout the
season. Under the Group’s annual strategy of centralized
procurement and development of new sources of supply
during the production season, the Group secured most
of the required raw materials at a competitive price to
control production costs and increase profitability in
2024.

Molasses

In 2022/23, only 64,170,000 tons of molasses were
produced worldwide after settlement, around 1,420,000
tons less than the previous year. This was the second
consecutive year of declining production, keeping the
price of molasses relatively high.

Total molasses production is expected to rebound
in 2023/24, but the export trade volume is not very
optimistic, especially as India has started to impose a
50% export tax, so the international price is expected
to remain strong. The Group will continue to monitor
changes in the international molasses market and actively
develop additional supply sources to ensure a stable
supply of the raw material.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(3)

Energy
Crude oil:

At the end of 2023, the international crude oil market
was on a strong upward trajectory, as the Red Sea
shipping crisis had caused congestion and made it
difficult to transport oil smoothly. A large volume of
oil can only be stored at sea, resulting in faster-than-
expected consumption of crude oil on land. However,
the geopolitical risk from the Russia-Ukraine War and the
Middle East conflict has subsided. In the near term, the
price of oil is expected to remain in the US$70-US$90
per barrel range. In addition, OPEC+ has sufficient spare
capacity and can adjust the supply and demand in the
crude oil market in a timely manner, preventing it from
becoming too tight, and keeping the price stable.

Coal:

In 2023, the global supply of natural gas, crude oil, and
coal was stabilized due to the lesser impact of the Russia-
Ukraine war, and international coal prices declined. The
Group will continue to monitor changes in the energy
industry and plan flexibly accordingly.

Electricity:

In 2023, Vietnam had a shortage of electricity as extreme
weather affected hydroelectric power generation. The
Vietnamese government raised the electricity tariffs by
3% for the first time in May 2023 and then by around
4.5% on 9 November 2023, an increase of approximately
7.6% increase for the year. The Vietnam Electricity
Corporation may continue to gradually increase tariffs.
The Group has been using a cogeneration power system
to ensure a stable supply of electricity, but it will also
continue to seek fuel supply countermeasures to mitigate
the impact of rising energy costs on the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1) Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at the end of 2023, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits, and structured
bank deposits amounting to US$50,359,000, an increase
of US$2,549,000, or approximately 5.3%, from the
end of 2022. Total bank borrowings amounted to
US$43,654,000, a decrease of US$15,967,000, or

approximately 27%, from the end of 2022.

The US interest rate hikes increased financing costs,
and the central bank of Vietnam cut interest rates
several times in 2023 to stimulate the economy. After
considering interest rate risks, financing costs and
exchange rate risks, the Group adjusted the total bank
borrowings in a timely manner. In addition to converting
a portion of bank borrowings to VND in 2023, part of the
capital funds was transferred to fixed deposits without
affecting working capital to generate additional finance
income. At the end of 2023, VND-denominated loans
accounted for approximately 72.6% of total borrowings.
Although the total bank borrowings decreased by
27%, the total net finance costs in 2023 increased by

US$1,238,000 from 2022 to US$1,791,000.

At the end of 2023, trade receivables amounted
to US$33,755,000, a decrease of US$235,000, or
approximately 1%, from the end of 2022. Total inventory
was US$137,680,000, a decrease of US$2,847,000, or

approximately 2%, compared with 2022.

Trade payables amounted to US$18,391,000 at the end
of 2023, a decrease of US$9,200,000, or approximately
33%, from the end of 2022. The current ratio increased
from 2.3 in 2022 to 2.8 in 2023. The Group's financial

structure remained stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

(3)

Capital Expenditure

In 2023, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
UsS$8,280,000, lower than the US$13,165,000 recorded
in 2022. The capital expenditure incurred in 2023 was
mainly due to the continuation of last year's projects,
including the organic maltose line added in the subsidiary
in Vietnam and the pregelatinized starch project. As
a result of the US interest rate hikes, the operating
environment was uncertain in 2023, and the Group
continued to take a prudent approach to planning its
development and investment projects. As a result, the
Group did not have any new projects requiring significant
capital expenditure during the year, except for the above-
mentioned continuation of projects.

Exchange Rate

The Federal Reserve has been raising interest rates since
March 2022. By the end of December 2023, interest
rates had been raised by 5.25%, and the US benchmark
interest rate range remained unchanged at 5.25% to
5.5% in 2023. During the year, Vietnam’'s central bank
cut interest rates four times to stimulate domestic
demand and sentiment. The Vietnamese Dong (VND)
came under depreciation pressure as the USD/VND
exchange rate differential widened. Nevertheless, the
inflow of strong foreign direct investment (FDI), foreign
remittances, trade surplus of a large number of products
and narrowing service trade deficit helped ease the
pressure. The central exchange rate of VND announced
by the State Bank of Vietnam depreciated by 1.07%
in 2023, from VND23,612/USD at the end of 2022 to
VND23,866/USD at the end of 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(3)

(4)

Exchange Rate (continued)

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly engaged
in local sales with transactions denominated in RMB.
Since 2023, the exchange rate of RMB against USD
went through three stages: climbing at the beginning
of the year, followed by depreciation in February and a
further depreciation in May. This was mainly due to the
tightening of the US monetary policy, which led to an
increase in the country’s long-term interest rate and a
widening of the interest rate differential between China
and the US. The increase in short-term capital outflows
intensified the depreciation pressure of RMB against
USD. Although the exchange rate has rebounded since
November, in the face of increasing uncertainty in the
external environment, the Central Economic Working
Conference of the PRC called for keeping the RMB
exchange rate generally stable at a reasonable balance
level and sent a policy signal to the foreign exchange
market. The RMB exchange rate remained basically
stable at around 7.1 by the end of the year. The Group
will continue to monitor the exchange rate movement
between RMB and USD.

Earnings per Share and Dividend

Basic earnings per share for the year were 0.460 US
cents. The Board of Directors has resolved a final dividend
of 0.2298 US cents per share. Together with the interim
dividend of US$0.229 cents per share already paid, total
dividends for the year will amount to US$0.4588 cents
per share (2022: Nil), representing a payout ratio of
100% on the earnings for the financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead to 2024, geopolitical risks such as the Russia-
Ukraine war, persistently high energy and raw material prices
and uncertain supply chains, as well as other factors such
as global inflation risks, and exchange rate and interest rate
fluctuations, will continue to add considerable complexity to
the economic and operating environment. These factors will
also influence the Group’s operating risks and opportunities in
the coming year.

Global economic growth is expected to stabilize or decline
slightly in 2024. In terms of social and economic development
in 2024, the Vietnamese government has formulated a
series of measures to achieve its economic growth targets,
among which, it emphasizes five key measures, including
innovation, green growth and sustainable development;
system optimization, especially in relation to green energy
development, such as energy security and transformation;
promoting the development of processing and manufacturing
industries; strengthening employee training; and actively
attracting foreign investment, especially FDI. The government is
also committed to alleviating inflationary pressures and creating
new room for business development for enterprises. It has set
an inflation-control target of 4.5% and an economic growth
target of 6.0% to 6.5% for 2024.

As for the PRC's economic growth forecast in 2024, the
Chinese Academy of Sciences (CAS) compiled a report on
the annual performance of the country’s economic growth,
investment, consumption, import and export, domestic prices,
international bulk commodity prices, and food production.
The PRC economy is expected to be stable in 2024, and its
growth will experience a slow start but peak towards the end
of the year. GDP growth is projected to be 5.3% in 2024. The
CAS expects that the PRC's balance of payments will remain
generally stable, its current account will achieve a favorable
balance, and remains optimistic that its services trade landscape
will continue to improve.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the face of a highly uncertain economic environment and
variables in the future, the Group will continue to improve the
flexibility of its overall operations, adjust its business portfolios
and models, strengthen its organizational operations to
enhance management efficiency, actively develop new products,
expand the scale of production, place greater focus on
satisfying customer demand, optimize the flexible cost structure
and industrial chain integration, and implement its action plan
to ultimately create new growth drivers and improve its ability
to generate profit. The key tasks and directions are outlined
below:

o Expand product lines and optimize product mix, partially
transform existing products, assess and launch extended
products, and gradually develop high value-added
products. The Group will also increase the proportion
of highly functional and high value-added products to
enlarge its market share and boost its profitability.

o Actively expand into new channels and new markets,
adjust product positioning and sales tactics, look for
cooperative partners to expand market scale, strengthen
brand positioning and competitive advantages so as to
improve the Group's results performance.

° Continue to advance production technologies and
enhance production efficiency, improve operational and
management techniques and utilize key technologies to
enhance core competitiveness so as to achieve the dual
objectives of raising quality and lowering costs.

. Capture the market trends of bulk raw materials,
actively seek alternative raw material solutions, maintain
stable cooperative relations with domestic and overseas
suppliers and effectively execute procurement strategies
to ensure a stable supply of raw materials.

° Adopt a “co-opetition” strategy to boost product and
service value, leverage the Group's production base in
Vietnam to actively develop the ASEAN market and the
markets that are signatories of the Free Trade Agreement
(FTA), Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement
for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP) and Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), and via
mutual support within the Group to realize its core
advantages and expand the Group’s business presence.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o Accelerate the formation of strategic alliances or cross-
industry cooperation to jointly develop the markets
through effective consolidation of resources, strengthen
its research and development (R&D) functions to realize
and seize technological breakthroughs, promote the
Group’s upgrade and transformation, introduce new
products, expand its business scale and improve its
business performance.

o Establish a strategic organizational structure and
dedicated strategic teams to enhance the organizational
efficiency of all units, coordinate the Company’s
operational action plans, integrate the Group’s resources,
seek strategic mergers and acquisition plans, and
continue to expand the Group's operations to increase
revenue, profit and scale.

o Expedite the introduction of an electronic process and
information system for the management and application
of big data, so as to obtain real-time feedback to
optimize business processes and respond to customer
needs in a timely manner.

° Continuously control capital deployment strategies,
improve the operational efficiency of assets and reduce
risks associated with financial market fluctuations amid
global financial market volatility.

Since 2023, in addition to the ongoing Russia-Ukraine war,
interest rate hikes by the world’'s major central banks have
also raised fears of economic recession. However, with
Vietnam’s excellent operating environment and various trade
agreements signed with a number of countries, the country
is expected to possess huge development potential after the
short-term economic volatility stabilizes. The Group remains
cautiously optimistic and will strive to maintain the existing
operating foundation and enhance the flexibility and agility
of its operations. It will also actively explore new products,
new businesses, and new areas of operation through strategic
alliances. All members of the Group will adopt a pragmatic
and cautious attitude in implementing the Group's operational
strategies so as to achieve greater breakthroughs and
development in its results and operations.
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HIGH QUALITY
HIGH-DEMAND
PRODUCTS
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At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is a group of core
products with widespread applications and strong brand
recognition, one of the Group’s most important and well-guarded
assets. Its renowned “Vedan” brand MSG, for example, is considered
essential throughout the food processing industries across Asia for
its role in enhancing the flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys
a huge and constantly growing market throughout Vietnam,
the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 81, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial
Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately
61 years’ working experience in the MSG industry and is one of
the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
responsible for formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion
Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 69, an Executive Director of the Company, has
been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 48 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Wanpao Asset
Management Co., Ltd., the president of Fongle Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., the commissioner of Industrial Development and Investment
Promotion Committee of Taichung City, the Executive director of
New Taiyuan Urban Development Association and the supervisor
of Taichung Culture & Education Foundation. Mr. YANG, Cheng
obtained an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in the PRC in
2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 66, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing the Group's
operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in
the development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam
since 1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and Vice
Chairman of Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan,
Billion Power Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid
Manufacturers Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 37 years’
working experience in the MSG industry

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 60, an Executive Director, has been a director
of the Company since 2002. He is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Taiwan Vedan, High Capital Investments Limited and Chairman of
Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen
Maotai). Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 30 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is responsible
for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen
obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 64, an Executive Director, has been a director
of the Company since 2012. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou had approximately
42 years' working experience in the food, beverage and consumer
products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is a director of Taiwan
Vedan and is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan,
Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai) and Concord
Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou was the director of Ve
Wong Corporation (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation).
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 70, a Non-executive Director, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, has been a director of the Company
since 2002. Mr. Huang is also a director of Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. Huang
is presently the Chairman of Champion Marketing Co., Ltd. (an
affiliated company of Taiwan Vedan). Mr. HUANG graduated from
the department of accounting and statistics of the National Taichung
Commercial College, Taiwan in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately
46 years' experience in administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 63, a Non-executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2006. Mr. CHOU is the Supervisor of
Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive Director of Shin-
Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder member
of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant of Wincome
Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
He has over 24 years of experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU
obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow University, Master
of Law degree from East China University of Political Science and Law
and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 62, an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. Mr. CHAO obtained a bachelor
degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from Soochow
University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law from the
University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive partner of
Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also a director
of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui Industrial
Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013) and the Independent
Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology Co., Ltd (an OTC
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHAO has
approximately 34 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 63, an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, as well as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2004. Mr.
KO graduated with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia
University, Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science
Degree in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr.
KO has been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs
& Co., Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO
is also the Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 64, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a director of
the Company since 2008. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State University, and
a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan University. Mr. CHEN
is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation and also a director of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd. and
Tai-Saw Technology Co., Ltd., the Independent Non-executive
Director of Longwell Company and Pili International Multimedia
Co.,Ltd. (a publicly-traded Company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation). Mr. CHEN has more than 36 years of experience in
securities business in Taiwan and was the Vice Chairman and General
Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd,. the
Chairman of Concord Capital Management Corp. and the Senior Vice
President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, 68, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, has been a director
of the Company since 2018. Mr. HUANG holds a bachelor’s degree
in electrophysics and a master's degree in management science from
National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Mr. HUANG is currently
a technical expert in the rank of adjunct associate professor at the
department of transportation & logistics management of National
Yang Ming Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. He is also the president
of Citpo Technologies Inc. Mr. HUANG was the founder secretary
general of Chinese Professional Management Association of Hsinchu,
Taiwan and was the chairman of Provision International Inc. and Ecom
Software Inc. Mr. HUANG was the president of Weblink International
Inc., Taiwan Regional Operations of Acer Inc. and Lottery Technology
Service Corporation. Mr. HUANG was the vice president of Quality
Assurance, ITGO, Acer Inc. Mr. HUANG was also an adjunct
assistant professor in the Department of Industrial Engineering and
Management of National Yang Ming Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 58, the Group's Chief Financial Officer and
the President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice President, is
responsible for the finance functions of the Group. Mr. NI graduated
from University of Oregon, major in finance and marketing, and holds
a master degree in business administration from Tunghai University,
Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993, and has been the
vice manager of business and foreign trade department of Vedan
Vietnam, special assistant to the chairman, vice president of financial
department, project manager of finance department of Taiwan Vedan
as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch. Mr. NI has full
qualification in finance, marketing and executive administration, and
has accumulated approximately 31 years of working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 60, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 34 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 62, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’s specialty
chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from National
Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of international
trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan Vietnam
in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business division and
marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has over 33 years
of sales management experience in the food production industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 61, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 35 years
of working experience in finance and administration.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. Yang, Tung, 54, the Group’s General Manager of Shanghai
Vedan. Mr. Yang graduated from Ling Tung University. He joined
Vedan Group in 1994 and has been the special assistant to the
chairman of Taiwan Vedan. He is also a director of Taiwan Vedan,
Vietnam Vedan, Shaghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai) and High Capital Investments Limited. Mr.
YANG, Tung has comprehensive qualifications in international
trade, marketing business and operation management, and has
approximately 31 years of working experience.

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 50, Vice President of the Group's Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the
finance, business and administrative function of the company. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with
a bachelor degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree
in civil engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG,
MengTa is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Vedan. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the top management of Taiwan branch.
Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 23 years of management experience.

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 48, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited ("Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and
Investor Services. Ms. WONG has over 25 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial field and has been providing professional
corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a
Chartered Governance Professional and a Fellow of both The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. WONG is a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKCGI. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor as external service provider and appointed Ms.
WONG as the Company's company secretary since 1 April 2012.)
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The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company’'s effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted
in accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that,
in the achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to
act with probity, transparency and accountability. By so acting, the
Company believes that shareholder wealth will be maximised in the
long term and that its employees, those with whom it does business
and the communities in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to
ensuring that its objectives are met. The Board is committed to
maintaining and developing robust corporate governance practices
that are intended to ensure:

- satisfactory and sustainable returns to shareholders;

- that the interests of those who deal with the Company are
safeguarded;

- that overall business risk is understood and managed
appropriately;

- the delivery of high-quality products and services to the
satisfaction of customers; and

- that high standards of ethics are maintained.
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The Company's corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Save and except for code provision F.2.2 as set out below, the
Company has complied with the provisions of the CG Code as set
out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange during the reporting period:

In respect of code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2023 due to
business commitments.

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group’s
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively
responsible for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. Directors take decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.
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The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and regularly reviews the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them that are
commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities. The
Board includes a balanced composition of Executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman)

YANG, Cheng

YANG, Kun-Hsiang (Chief Executive Officer)
YANG, Chen-Wen

YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAOQO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary” on pages 32 to 36 of this Annual Report. The
relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective
Director’s biography under the section “Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” on pages 32 to 36 of this
Annual Report. Save as disclosed above, there is no relationships
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between the Board members.
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The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and the
requirement of having sufficient number of INEDs representing one-
third of the Board. None of the INEDs has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other directors
and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism during the year which sets out the processes and
procedures to ensure a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to
better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement
or further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what
actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve
the Board performance, for instance, addressing individual training
and development needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the
Board will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board
which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for
improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors has
completed the independence evaluation individually. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report was presented to the Board and the
evaluation results were satisfactory.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’s primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group's expense in carrying out their functions.

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix C1 to the then Listing
Rules. The relevant terms of reference was revised on 25 December
2018 to comply with the existing Listing Rule. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-
Ray and Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, all Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2023 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

The remuneration of the senior management (excluding Executive
Directors) of the Company, whose biographical details are included
in section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary” on pages 32 to 36 of this Annual Report, during
the year falls within the following band:
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The Company's remuneration policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees, including Directors and senior
management, is based on skill, knowledge, responsibilities and
involvement in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages
of Executive Directors are also determined with reference to the
Company’s performance and profitability, the prevailing market
conditions and the performance or contribution of each Executive
Director. The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises
Director’s fees/salary, discretionary bonus and allowances. The
remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is to ensure that Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for
their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs, including
their participation in Board committees. The remuneration for the
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
mainly comprises Director’s fee and allowances which is determined
with reference to their duties and responsibilities by the Board.
Individual Directors and senior management have not been involved
in deciding their own remuneration.
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The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, the
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, reviewing the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) and the Director Nomination Policy and assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. Such policy aims to set out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary
to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,
where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications
of the retiring directors standing for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting and to review the Board Diversity Policy and Director
Nomination Policy.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

RLZECNEERATESHABLE S
UFRITEFHBRAE - WEEEERRSE
Mt -REEEENETFEAHREMBEE -

RYZEENIERECERFNEFEENA
BHERBRERGKREEESTNHEBEER
MEFZARBEISENEFTSREEER
R B EFElES T ERRRERRAN
o UKL BIIIFRITESRB I -

EFSER(EXERTRD ZERRMNESS
REZTIEHRR ARBRERIRAENRES
g2 GE.

BN EFENERKAMEFTEREANRHRS
TEFEHNRE RLEZEETREREZEINA
REFEMESZTIERENER 8 (ERIR
) REEHE - EXELR - XEREFER K
B MR REME -

RYMBERRESEEEANER RREETN
MEFGHFHEEEZRN REEEFR%
BRFISMNESEERBRNEREFES L
(8 &5 38) PR Y RE AERIIRE -

RAEZEGESRT —RNEH UBRFNEFEH
RE AR KA REIIIFRITESENEIL
M- EENRRBEAEGLEENREESH
BERURBHEFERESTIEERRRESR
£2y28



Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
reviews regularly the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices
at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured
so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 1 of member of the Board shall be female;

(B) at least 55% of the members of the Board shall be non-
executive Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(C) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

(D) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(E) atleast 27% of the members of the Board shall have more than
23 years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised in;
and

(F)  at least 36% of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

The Board of Directors will continue improving the diversity goals of
the Board. And The Board of Directors will progress of identifying
suitable female professionals for appointment to the Board on merit
against objective criteria by 31 December 2024.
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Gender Diversity
The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Group, including the Board and senior management as at the date of
this Annual Report:

(¥ lE 27w
FRBRERFTERZBEBRIMLERNZ AT
KFFBBEAFERSANREAEEST (81
EFERESHREER NMRILEER

Female Male

Z% B4

Board 559 0% (0) 100% (11)
Senior management SR EEE 27% (34) 73% (93)
Other employees HMET 20% (754) 80% (3064)

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee is in
progress of identifying suitable female candidate(s) for appointment
to the Board on merit against objective criteria.

The Board of Directors plans to achieve at least 8% (1) female
director members by end of 31 December 2024. The Board believes
that the current gender diversity of female senior management and
female employees of the Group is reasonable and appropriate. The
Group will continue to create a workplace environment with equal
employment opportunities for female.

Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant data

can be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
page 71 of this Annual Report.
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and nomination process and the Board
succession planning considerations in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The nomination process set out in the Director Nomination Policy is as
follows:

Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select
candidates for directorship from various channels, including
but not limited to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other member of the management and external recruitment
agents.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director
and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

(iii) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

(iv)  The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

(v)  For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for election
as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.
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Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to
Shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules
and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the criteria for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(18 year-old or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board

committee(s) of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no change in
the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. During the year, the Board
reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and
highleveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.
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The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group are summarised as follows:

o Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks
through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.
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Environmental protection management for production cycle:
Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute,
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in
order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

Occupational safety and hygiene management for production
cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents;
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate
improvement measures.

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group

TEBRRZREFREEE  RBEEERY
EHZERER RERRRBREREH
FE O UIREEBEMUFE BT - BHESA
BB IRIRIG RAER I - U REIRIRR
EHEE-

TERBRZBEZEHLEEE -HHR
LHERBERZBEREETRI DM
R M ERBEERBPIGTEREE
T ©

FEFUPEBRERFAEN2023FFTEERE

stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2023 are as follows: FaTF

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EEEE RELE EERFY

2023/02/28 Vietnam Labor Law 2
WEE RS B

2023/04/17 Analysis of Important Indicators of Financial Reports 4
PHBRSEERERON

2023/05/17 Foreign Exchange Management and Foreign Currency Payments and Collection 4
BEXRINEEER—REISNEEWIRIEE

2023/07/24 Payment Methods For International Trade 4
BlR & 5 2 (J455]

2023/08/26 IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Overview 4
IAS 162 R — Bl E B EEH

2023/09/28 Managements For Customers Credit Limits 4
ERREBREEENE

2023/10/14 Managing Cash Receipts and Payments 4
RE W EEPE

2023/11/22 Accounting and Cashier Operation Directions 6
Bt R HAAEEREA

2023/11/25 Managing and Processing Invoice documents 2

BREEENE

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group
stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2023 are as follows:

Date of Course

Name of Course

FEBAEREMBAENR2023FTEERS
W

Hour of Study

EIERRE RIEZRTE EERFY
Annual Continuing Education on Accounting in Songjiang 192
EEE WIEEsHEEHS

Annual Continuing Education on Accounting in Xiamen 192
EEE EFfEgsEEHS

Annual Continuing Education for Tax Accountant 96
EEE MM ERS

2023/11/11 Description of National Tax Policy 4

B R A5 U B R R PR
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group, including the resources on accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Company, the qualification and experience
of staff members and the training programmes participated by the
staff members and the relevant budgets. The Board considered the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
adequate and effective. The Group reviews its risk management
and internal control system on annual basis in order to optimise its
effectiveness and in turn heighten the overall corporate governance
standard of the Group.

The Company has in place the Whistleblowing Policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the Company
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit
Committee about possible improprieties in any matters related to the
Company.

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to
safeguard against corruption and bribery within the Company. The
Company has an internal reporting channel that is open and available
for employees of the Company to report any suspected corruption
and bribery. Employees can also make anonymous reports to the
internal audit function, which is responsible for investigating the
reported incidents and taking appropriate measures. The Company
continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery activities to
cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively organizes anti-corruption
training and inspections to ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption
and anti-bribery.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had no
non-compliance cases in relation to bribery and corruption.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings,
the Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in
the table below:

BREERAREANBE_Z_=ZF+2A4
Z+—HILEEERTZEFEEHR EFEE
EEERRRRAGHHERRUOT :

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HEE/ ERRY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

B28 BitZ88 HWzEe REZEE  REAFAE
Executive Directors HiTESE
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) BEE (2R 4/4 NARER NATIER /1 0/1
YANG, Cheng B I 4/4 NAREA NAREA NAREA 0/
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CFO) BRE (THEH) 414 NAT B NARER NARER 101
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 3/4 N/ATIE NAFRER NARER 0/
YANG, Kun-Chou Rl 4/4 NATIE NAFREH NAR B 0/
Non-executive Directors ERfTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BRE 4/4 NATE 1n NAFREH 17
CHOU, Szu-Cheng AHE 4/4 NATEH NATREH NAREH 0/
Independent Non-executive BiERTES

Directors

CHAO, Pei-Hong HIER 4/4 2 17 111 11
KO, Jim-Chen I 414 2”2 11 11 0
CHEN, Joen-Ray BB 414 2 7 10 01
HUANG, Chung-Fong g 414 2 NAREA NARER 0/
Notes: B 5E :

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen authorized Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung to exercise the voting
right on the first board meeting.

In respect of code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional EEESEBEMNZEZRXLE BRI FH
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. HAN#H i AE -

The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December HE_Z_=#+_A=+—HLEE %

2023 are summarized as follows: BIEBEENAT

Directors Type of Training "o ) S BN $E By A
Executive Directors HITEE

YANG, Tou-Hsiung A&B ¥ SR LE A&B
YANG, Cheng A&B % IE A&B
YANG, Kun-Hsiang A&B PRI iE A&B
YANG, Chen-Wen A&B R A&B
YANG, Kun-Chou A&B 2 e A&B
Non-executive Directors FFHITEE

HUANG, Ching-Jung A&B i A&B
CHOU, Szu-Cheng A&B B5iE A&B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTEE

CHAO, Pei-Hong A&B B R A&B
KO, Jim-Chen A&B &1 A&B
CHEN, Joen-Ray A&B R B I A&B
HUANG, Chung-Fong A&B =B A&B
Note: Kzt -

Types of Training ENEER

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to briefings, A: HERIIRR QEEFERER AT &
seminars, conferences and workshops ZEM IR

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and  B:  RI:EABRAETRIE LS $R4% - #9735 R MR T
relevant publications L7

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non- iR F3RAIFE3.131& > X AT EEBRBIIE
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant #HITEERIHEBIM AXATRAEAFRERIL
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the JFEHITEETHEB/ I -

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive JEH{TEE (BIFEBIIEHITES) 2HEHTEEME
Directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to FHNAEIF AN IREHEREREBEES-
renewal after the expiry of the current term.

Code provision B.2.2 states that every director, including those {EEATFAZFAMEXB.2.2E:TH S4E
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by FE (BEMUESEEHRESEINES) RIVES=F
rotation at least once every three years. Each of the Non-Executive #REEBRE—KR -AXATZIERNTESTEES=F
Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by rotation once  #R{EIR{F—K o

every three years.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$345,000
and US$5,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2023. The reporting responsibilities of the independent auditor of the
Company on the financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 118 to 124.

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year under review, the Company has amended its Articles
of Association. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular
dated 21 April 2023 to the Shareholders. An up to date version
of the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company's website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.
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Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during
a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  5/F, Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company is endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy. The
policy aims at promoting effective communication with Shareholders
and other stakeholders, encouraging Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company and enabling Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. The Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders” Communication Policy and the
results were satisfactory.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(a) Corporate Communication

“Corporate Communication” as defined under the Listing
Rules refers to any document issued or to be issued by the
Company for the information or action of holders of any
of its securities, including but not limited to the following
documents of the Company: (a) the Directors’ report, annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report and,
where applicable, its summary financial report; (b) the interim
report and, where applicable, its summary interim report; (c) a
notice of meeting; (d) a listing document; (e) a circular; and (f)
a proxy form. The Corporate Communication of the Company
will be published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkex.com.hk) in a timely manner as required by the
Listing Rules. Corporate Communication will be provided to
Shareholders and non-registered holders of the Company’s
securities in both English and Chinese versions or where
permitted, in a single language, in a timely manner as required
by the Listing Rules using electronic means. Shareholders and
non-registered holders of the Company's securities shall have
the right to choose the language (either English or Chinese) or
means of receipt of the Corporate Communication (in printed
form or through electronic means).

(b) Announcements and Other Documents pursuant to the
Listing Rules
The Company shall publish announcements (on inside
information, corporate actions and transactions etc.) and other
documents (e.g. Memorandum and Articles of Association) on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website in a timely manner in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Corporate Website

Any information or documents of the Company posted on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website will also be published
on the Company's website (www.vedaninternational.com).
Other corporate information about the Company's business
developments, goals and strategies, corporate governance
and risk management will also be available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forum for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information
provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders
to make an informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings for
and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.
Where appropriate or required, the Chairman of the Board and
other Board members, the chairmen of board committees or
their delegates, and the external auditors should attend general
meetings of the Company to answer Shareholders’ questions (if
any).

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Enquiries about Shareholdings

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited, or call its hotline at (852) 2980-1333, or go in
person to its public counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Enquiries about Corporate Governance or Other Matters to be
put to the Board and the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders may send any enquiries to the Board by
email: vdi@vedaninternational.com or by post to 5/F, Manulife
Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong (with
attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, Company Secretary).

Webcast
Webcasts of the Company’s interim and annual results briefings
are available.

Other Investor Relations Communication Platforms
Investor/analysts briefings, roadshows (both domestic and
international), media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums etc. will be launched on
a required basis.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2023 was the hottest year in human history, amplifying the urgency
of the era of global boiling and climate breakdown as extreme
weather brought extreme disasters. Many countries suffered extensive
land damage and thousands of unforeseen fatalities caused by
floods and wildfires. This issue made the first global decarbonization
report of the Conference of the Parties (COP) for 2023 especially
noteworthy. According to the report, since the Paris Agreement came
into effect, global progress on carbon reduction has been slow. To
meet the commitment to limit temperature rise to 1.5°C, countries
have to reduce their emissions by at least 43% by 2030. As fossil
fuels are the primary source of carbon emissions, the method of
reduction of their use has always been a key issue of COP. Before the
conclusion of COP28, a historic resolution was passed calling for a
global “transitioning away” from fossil fuels. Although the resolution
did not call for a "phase-out” of fossil fuels, a clear signal has been
shown: the future belongs to renewable energy, not fossil fuels.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to the issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee”. The committee members practically
promote environmental education with combination of regional
production and sales strategy and the concept of environmental
protection and earth preservation and implements sustainable
environment plans with regular meetings to review the achievements
under the respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully
discloses the implementation of CSR. In 2023, the Group achieved
outstanding performance in terms of emissions and waste
management and energy usage management. In the future, the
Group will implement the corporate governance policy in accordance
with the laws and strive to achieve the most outstanding operating
efficiency of the Group with an aim to realise mutual benefit with the
environment.
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RIF-HHERER/HRS

INTRODUCTION (continued)

To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

515 (88)

REKBEEENED  EEHETEETHRAR
BREBMS F7TRERERE ERMEH
Bz UEERE2NABAEEREREE-
REBT—EAZ2RBRASURCEZFENN
ITHFRFE UTHREST -FA HEE - REA
RitEERERZHEIHMNE  ROIRERTE
EEORFEBENTEEL DBELENRE:
EREBLAMIKRBEFREBEANHE-

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in
Factory Areas with Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology

TRLEEMERBERTIRARC AEEMREEAER

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the purposes of general disclosure responsibilities. The period and
areas covered by this report are as follows:

FREFRKBEEBH S5 L RRM &
“HERBRE HERERKREES) KM
BHI(EEEATR) ZRABEIT —RIRES
FomREAEPERBIBUOT :

Period covered

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

HE EARE 7a752023FE 1A 1HE2023F12831H
Areas covered The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of
HE R branches in Taiwan and Cambodia covered by Vedan International Group

RABERERRENRE PREEEM SEDRBRIBHED RE D ERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting
parklike construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

o Employee safety, environmental protection and resource
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission
of exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or
overachieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws
of the places where its production bases are located and
the requirements of internal standards.

° The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

. In 2023, the emission standard of each emission
of the Group was in line with the requirement of
environmental impact assessment for all production
bases. The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has obtained the Environmental Protection
Permit issued by the Vietnamese government in 2023,
and strictly implemented the requirements as stipulated
in the Environmental Protection Permit and relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations.

BR : BRI KEKE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF-HHERER/HRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

IRIGIRE (4])
R | BEIRIE  KREE (B)

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHWMEEB-BHHLILEK BEREREE
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

° The concentration system in production plants were o
reformed for the purpose of reducing the consumption of
steam energy. In addition, enhancing the connection of
various wastewater treatment systems and the collection
of various types of wastewater is also expected to achieve

Mz B (48)

HETERREAMETRE
HENARLEZAERERE It
Sho NS EREKRERRZE
EoREREEKZWE R
B SRAZEIBFNRER

better water pollution prevention and pollution-free ERESREYER
discharge.

. According to the statistics, the types of emissions . Rt 2023 F T EHEEEBETRE
produced in the production process of the primary plants ZHEBRYBEREESIIWT -
in 2023 and the relevant data are set out below:

2022 2023 Difference Unit

Type of emissions BER 2022 2023F ER B

Total volume of wastewater BEKABERE (I AR 5.70 4.42 -22.40% m¥/ton
discharged (m?)/product JEREE (AW UBK/ A
output (ton)

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BERk—E2BEAE(COD) (AF) 9.09 9.82 7.99% kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product /EREE (A1) NN
output (ton)

Air emission - Sulphur oxides (SOx) | ZRHM—FREILHSOx (AF) 4.93 6.35 28.80% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) JEREE (AH) NN

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides (NOx) | Z=RIFR—FALYINOX (AF) 5.39 4.56 -15.41% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (AH) NN

Total greenhouse gas emission BRERBESHZ 1,477,348.00 696,189 -52.88% tonCOze

AMECOze

Total emission intensity of BERBARRERE 2.66 1.38 -48.07% | ton COze/ton
greenhouse gas AMECOL/AME

Total hazardous waste BEEENEE 70,315.66 64,769.29 -7.89% kg AfF

Total non-hazardous waste BEEENER 70,818,192 44,963,550 -36.51% kg AfF

Hazardous waste intensity BEBEEYEE 0.13 0.13 1.50% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) RF/AEERES) NN

Non-hazardous waste intensity BEBRRNEE 127.38 89.12 -30.04% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) RF/AEERES) NN

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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BRIt ERER

HE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1)
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2023 as compared to

B - ﬁaﬁlaiﬂ »KIERE (8)

HFRMER-SNRLVEK BEREER
Mz B (48)

2023FHB2022FE 2 FEEZRRA ¢

2022:
Difference
Type of emissions BHES #E | Explanation for difference EEHH
Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BEk—L2ERE(COD) 7.99% | Our chemical addition increased in FR02EMAEEESEERLRR
Demand (COD) (kg)/product (AFr) /EREE (AE) 2023, which was mainly due to the BURARER ERLERTMER
output (ton) commencement of production of multiple M ERABEKCODEE Lo
customised starch related products, resulting
in an increase in the chemical oxygen
demand (COD) concentration of wastewater.
Air emission - Sulphur oxides (50x) | ZERHFH—HRAEHSOx 28.08% | Our use of coal with higher sulfur content | FFE2023E 5 & HiA 2 82022
(kg)/product output (ton) (AF) /EREE (RK) in 2023, as compared to 2022, resulted in | 5 BENREABERFHEEZ
higher SOx density in the air emission even | SOxB L7182 BH *%UWAﬁ
after treatment; however, we still managed | BEMHKE®E  2EERALRE
to meet the local emission standards in e
Vietnam, and passed their tests during the
year.

Total greenhouse gas emission RERBASNE -52.88% | The results of the 15O 14064-1:2018 HRERER202512 ARG RERE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory Report | %3358 » #120225#8HUNISO 14064-
were used as the basis for disclosure from 018RERBRSREELARAR

Total emission intensity of RERBAHNETE -48.07%

greenhouse gas

2022 onwards. Subject to the regulations of
the Vietnamese government, the calculation
is based on the scope of certification for
Categories 1 and 2.

BrEE-ARAUBBRATHAE
T URBRE BB —REEH
%0
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of
resources

o The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

° The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

° By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
Energy Management Committee which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalize
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

° In 2019, the Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) improved the concentration system in the
production process in production plants and reduced
the use of steam energy while also reducing water
consumption for cooling down.

. The Group proactively implements the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in the
concentration process of production and reuse the same
in the production process. The amount of condensation
that can be recycled for every ton of products in 2023
was 2.62KL.

° In 2023, the packaging materials used by the primary
production bases of the Group in the production process
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper
bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2023, the recycling
rate reached 84.9%.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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RIE-HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

IRIG (R ()
R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2) BREASE-HEEERE BREEK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BAAE @
resources (continued)
o The total consumption of energy used in the primary o 2023 FFEL EEMBRERERE
production bases in 2023 is as follows: EMRAWT
2022 2023 Difference Unit

Types of usage FHEE 20224 20235F ER B

Indirect energy — Unit consumption BEEF-BHEMAE 797.50 807.74 1.28% kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BHEAE (TR FRAOE/
consumption (kWh)/production JEREE (AH) N
output (ton)

Indirect energy - Unit consumption of | BERERE-—4£EMBEMEE 57.61 53.25 -7.56% kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (EEMNERE (R NN
(kg)/production output (ton) /ERES (AH)

Direct energy — Unit consumption of | EiZfER—EREMNRE 472.93 478.01 1.08% kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (BRiEmE (AF) / NN
production output (ton) EmES (AH)

Total water consumption BIEKE 6,756,946 6,672,701 -1.25% m® I 5K

Water consumption intensity BKEBE @FKEQHK) / 12.15 13.23 8.82% m3/ton
(total water consumption (m?)/ EREE (NI AV /N
production output (ton)

Total packaging materials used FRNEENREE-XTE 73,389.60 39,511.10 -46.16% kg AF
- FIBC bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEYREE-RR 391,303.45 289,150.50 -26.11% kg AfF
— Paper bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEREE-HH 3,081,226.90 | 2,963,688.90 -3.81% kg AF
- Carton boxes

Total packaging materials used FRNEEMREE-BBR 245,337.00 278,641.00 13.57% kg AF
— Plastic cylinders

Intensity of packaging materials used | ERNEBEMHEE-XEE 4.32 4.72 9.15% kg/ton
~ FIBC bags R/ AW

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMBEYHBE—FR 9.44 9.59 1.53% kg/ton
— Paper bags NSNS

Intensity of packaging materials used | fEREIBEYRZE -4 70.49 70.93 0.62% kg/ton
- Carton boxes NSNS

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMIBEYHEE L BHF 41.00 40.75 -0.60% kg/ton
~ Plastic cylinders YNT/N
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RIE-HEAELGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2)
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2022 as compared to

IRIR A€ (49)

B BEIRIE KEKE (B

BEREREE-HBEHAERE BREI
B A @)

2023FHE2022F 2 F EEERA

2021
Difference
Types of usage EREE Z& | Explanation for difference EEHHN
Water consumption intensity (total | #XBE (@ KE 8.82% | The primary reason for the increase in water | TREEBEKEZEM UETHE
water consumption (5K /ERES usage was the production of high water- BzaE BERRENRE BREK
(m3)/production output (ton) (Am) consuming products and the testing of new | EB Lo
production lines. Although these lines have
not yet officially commenced production,
water consumption has already increased.
Total packaging materials used FRNEENNAE 13.57% | The main reason for the rise in the usage of | TEEMEFEREER AFEET
- Plastic cylinders -8B plastic barrels was the addition of a maltose | HEME URMEBBERE Lo
production line and the continuous testing
of this line.
Indirect energy - Unit consumption | RN BENHEE 31.94% | As the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic COVIDREF 218% £@R2023EK
of biofuel (total biofuel ) subsided, the Group resumed its normal BEEGBATOERZEERD B

consumption (kg)/production
output (ton))

production mode for monosodium
glutamate space-pack products in 2023,
leading to a significant increase in the usage
of this material.

BRI B EAREM-
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Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3)

Environment and natural resources management -
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring for
environment and protecting natural ecosystem

In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the ISO
50001: 2011 Energy Management System Certification in
October 2016, the ISO 50001: 2018 Energy Management
System Certification in July 2021 and the ISO 14064-
1:2018 Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory Certification
in December 2022 and October 2023, successively. We
established an impeccable equipment maintenance and
examination system through a high standard certification
inspection. The usage of energy consuming equipment
has been gradually optimised, which facilitated
reasonableness and efficiency of energy consuming
equipment, reduced energy costs and effectively
controlled greenhouse gas emissions.

Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education.

Since 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has planned to use non-burnt bricks
equipment which recycled coal ash in electrical boilers
into non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials.
Being in line with the national development policy, it
reused and recycled waste and used such equipment
and technical skills to enhance reuse of resources, which
conserved energy and reduced consumption and brought
significant meanings to earth preservation. In 2023, the
plant has produced a total number of 710,000 pieces of
non-burnt bricks and has reduced the coal ash by 846
tons.

BE  BERIE KERE (@

(3)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management —
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring
for environment and protecting natural ecosystem
(continued)

o In 2023, the primary production bases of the Group
organised a total of 71 training courses in relation
to environmental safety and hygiene with 5,132
participants and the average training hours were 26.2
hours per person every year. The contents of the courses
are summarised as follows:

No. Course Name

BR REHE

KR | BEIRIE O KERKE (8

RERRAEREE -RAEREAN
> BEREFRESALE (B)

2023 FEEFERELBRIRIER
EHEEBBEEIGREE715
RBMAKXRAS5,132 A FHE AL
R A6 2NEE o HBRER
AU

1 The national requirements for occupational safety training target groups 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6

BREBRZHLE1,2,3,4,6MIHE R

— Safety operation and maintenance training for lifting and pressure equipment (Occupational Safety

Group 3)
—EEERBRNRHELZTRENBEEMEI B R E3440)

— Safety training for metal welding and cutting, high-altitude operations and electricity use (Occupational

Safety Group 3)
— BV SEFEERBEZEIG (BFLE34)

— Safety training for confined space operations and working in dusty areas (Occupational Safety Group 3)

—REREEFERKEER T HFELZ2IIM4 BLE34H)

— Boiler operation and maintenance safety training (Occupational Safety Group 3)

—RIEIRERAEE 2RI (5 Z5E34)
— Chemical safety training (Occupational Safety Group 3)
—ERERLZ2INR (BLE34E)

— Safety training for the use of portable electrical equipment, lawn mowers and automotive maintenance

techniques (Occupational Safety Group 3)

—THFRAERAFE HNER ABHEERMTZ2IR (5

— Industrial equipment operation and maintenance safety (Occupational Safety Group 3)

—ITEXRBRIFERMEERE (FLHE34E)

— Training for crane operators and lifting equipment license

—RERE > RERFEAESRRINER

2 Waste management and recycling courses
BEEYEE  BIREIWRRE
3 Firefighting training, promotion and drills
HBRISR - EERES
4 First aid and rescue operation training
> MHEEBHEINR
5 Educational training on road traffic safety awareness
BRXBLZEMNAEENHT IR
6 ISO 45001 & 14001 environmental considerations, hazard identification and environmental impact risk
assessment

ISO 45001 & 14001IRIEZ £ - BEREEF RIRIEFL E G

7 Understanding of ISO 45001 & 14001 and internal audits
ISO 45001& 1400153 # M A EBFE1Z

Total  Total training hours Total participation
for the year

A&t 2 FEBNREFE WBEAR
90,337 (hours) 5,132 (persons)
90,337 (/\BF) 5,132 (A%)

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(4)

B BEIRIE KEKE (B

Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement (4) mMeEREREZEEIRNE
The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the EEFIZ4EENUEREESRE
Group) implements the Environmental Management MHMITIRIEEIERHISO 14001)>
System (ISO 14001), Occupation Health Safety BEZE2HBEEERHKSO
Management System (OHSAS18001/ISO 45001), and 45001~ BETRBEE R (SO 50001)
Energy Management System (ISO 50001) and Inventory HAERBEEEERAUSO
and Management System for Greenhouse Gas Emissions 14064-1) EHEZBIESHEEE
(ISO 14064-1) every year, and regularly reviews the RMITH > TRBEEhEL > FF
progress and effectiveness of all plans and proactively BUCEL S EERKREERLE
improves the deficiencies in order to continuously improve HimaRo
and govern with high-standard international regulations
and conduct self-reflection.
In 2023, in respect of all laws related to environmental 2023F EEAMAIRMGEREE R
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of HZER BRK - BEEMSE BFE
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national BEEEMZBERZE
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.
In 2023, the external inspection and environmental 03 FFELEEMIREBELTEHE
examination in respect of environmental safety and e BETR ISR FE 1% SR IR IR A R AR 5T AN
hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are T
as follows:
No. Name Result
EHR %iE BER
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
F—FIRIEWA =R
2 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
B FIRIBEA =R
3 Annual External Inspection (ISO14001& ISO 45001) Pass
FESMPREZ(SO 14001 & 1SO 45001) =B
4 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
B=FRIBEA =R
5 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Pass
FEIMEBFEZISO 50001) Febie)
6 Annual External Inspection (ISO 14064) Pass
FESNBFEZ(SO 14064) AR
7 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FNFRIERR ai&

Note: The Group’s production bases in China and business
footholds in Taiwan and Cambodia are principally engaged
in sales and light industry trade. The primary production
base of the Group is the Vietnam plant and therefore the
environmental emission and energy data disclosed in this
report mainly concern the Vietnam plant.

B EETERE aERRFEE
BRMEZEFHIEUHERES
BRI ERZIEZEEREMDE
R AR EPTIRE IR HE
W BERBUR BB R & 2 M 5t
AE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the
goal of "building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’
benefits” through three measures, namely “full compliance with the
labour laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness
of the working environment and proactive implementation of
employees’ training and communication”, which help build a sound
labour-employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the
Group and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’

Benefits (continued)

(1) Employment principles — Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued)

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(1) ERRA-2ATFZEEGHESRSE
ZIREN (48)

° In 2023, the Group had 3,945 employees in aggregate. °
The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and

geographic region is set out below:

2023 E BB T8 F3,945M01 0
UT#HREMEN #ES D5 A X
et HEE AKX

Total number

Male in Female in of employees
The Group’s primary base each region each region in each region
EEFEEM ZEEBBET EEBRET ZEBRETHAY
The Vietnam plant # & 3,026 714 3,740
The China plant FEIR&E 116 63 179
Foothold in Taiwan &8 9 8 17
Foothold in Cambodia SE3HEEH 2 6 3 9

Total average

Total average

Total average

resignation resignation resignation

rate of male rate of female | rate per month

staff per month | staff per month | of each region

88T ¥8T Z&

The Group’s primary base BRm= PR = BERE=
ERFEEM BE RS | LRSS
The Vietnam plant @& K& 1.08% 0.20% 1.28%
The China plant FEIR&E 1.12% 0.63% 0.95%
Foothold in Taiwan & 2 2.09% 1.11% 1.63%
Foothold in Cambodia SRIHZEIRE, 3.66% 2.38% 3.34%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

Employees’ benefits - Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions

The Group attaches importance to gender equality
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

The Group has formulated relevant regulations which
provide the managements served at the primary
production bases in Vietnam and China with benefits,
such as meals and free transportation.

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. All are implemented in accordance
with local laws and regulations of each operating
location.

In 2023, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment twice a
year in order to encourage the talents to excel themselves
with a friendly management approach. In addition, the
overall salaries of all staff were raised in 2023 as in line
with the basic wage adjustments in Vietnam.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(3)

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.

The Group has reported its internal regulations to
the competent authorities in the countries where its
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee”
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant
competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group) has
coordinated with international or local review institutions
to regularly carry out audits and collect employees’
opinions on labour management and relevant issues in
order to protect the relevant interests of the employees.

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(3)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B BUTEME - BESTEN (@)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment 4) EBEZ2HEERENIERIE-ATZR>
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’ 2ERE
healthiness

Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company’s safety
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places
significant importance on the promotion of occupational
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance
applicable to the local operating area to each employee
and arranges regular health check for the employees in
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with
professional medical institutions to find out whether an
employee suffers from an occupational disease based
on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept
of environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in
addition to organising environmental safety education
programmes for the management level and the
employees from time to time, the Group has also merged
the concept of environmental safety and hygiene into
major corporate events (for example, participation in tree
planting activities organised by environmental protection
units under local governments, and reception of
government agencies or academic groups for visits of the
sewage treatment system of the Company, etc.) in order
to create an impact by combining environmental safety
education with operating activities.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness (continued)

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2023, there were 7 cases of work injury in the
Group's primary production bases, which resulted in a
total of 1,712 lost working hours due to work injury.
Among which, a total of 1,264 hours of traffic accidents
happened outside the factory area (accounting for 74%),
whereas a total of 448 hours of work-related accidents
occurred within the factory area (accounting for 26%).
The Group will continuously minimise the occurrence of
work safety accident within the factory area every year
through rigorous safety education, management system
and equipment.

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including 1SO 14001,
ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO 9001
and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards of
the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(4)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ 3 : B TE¥ME - WESTEFN (@)
Benefits (continued)

(5) Development and training - Talent cultivation and (5) BREFZIN-AAERF BUSTIFER
establishment of learning and growing environment HNBERRIRIE
which employees can follow

The Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company. The nurture and
development of talents are valued and each employee is
provided with comprehensive educational training and
promotion system to satisfy their needs from different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees.

The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(5)

(6)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow (continued)

In 2023, there were a total of 86,620 hours of
education and training courses organised by the main
production bases of the Group with average training
hours of approximately 25.2 hours per person every
year, representing increase of 12% in training hours
per person as compared to 2022. In 2023, total hours
of middle and senior management personnel of the
Group taking occupational training courses were 14,444
hours (middle management officers) and 11,497 hours
(senior management officers), respectively, increased by
17% in training hours taken by middle management
officers and increased by 96% in training hours taken
by senior management officers as compared to 2022.
The enhancement of educational training for middle
and senior management, especially in courses related to
management and professional skills are the main reason
for the increase in training hours.

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
“establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

BRAEN-AAES BUSTIERE
NEBHRIRIR (8)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6) Labour standards - Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws (continued)

° The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

° Implementation of an annual external audit on human
resources recruitment agencies which cooperate with the
major production bases of the Group so as to ensure such
external agencies do comply with labour and safety laws
and regulations.

(7) Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system

. The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, and set up the system of
safety manager in each plant, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene and analysing the causes thereof, and
suggesting feasible improvement proposals or refined
engineering designs to the Group in an endeavour
to assist the Group to continuously heighten the
management standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(7)

(8)

Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system (continued)

° Annual targets of management on environment, safety
and hygiene have been set in each factory area of
the Group in accordance with local regulations. The
occurrences of abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene have been effectively reduced
through an implementation of environment, safety and
hygiene inspections, education and trainings and regular
inspections on working environment in order to maximise
the working efficiency of the employees in a safe and
healthy environment.

o In addition to self-initiated inspections on environment,
safety and hygiene by each unit of the Group, the internal
inspection department also regularly reviews all operating
control on environment, safety and hygiene in the factory
area and the relevant operating environment to ensure
the implementation management systems such as ISO
14001, ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001, etc.

Winning the recognition of Vietnamese governmental
authorities

For six consecutive years (from 2017 to 2022), our Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) have been
granted the “Exemplary Enterprise Award for Commitment to
Workers” by the Vietnam General Confederation of Labour, The
Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social Affairs and the Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, in recognition of their
relentless efforts to improve the material and spiritual life of its
employees while actively improving their working environment,
giving full play to their talent and skills and striving to achieve
the goal of sustainable development together with them.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of
improving management system of both parties

° The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Programme”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. In 2022, the Group has completed the
annual assessment on suppliers according to the plan.

° The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.

(2) Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

° In order to carry out safety management for contractors
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the
Group not only continuously reminds and informs
the contractors of the relevant safety management
requirements, but also conducts on-site supervision over
the operation safety of the manufacturers and procures
them to implement their own management to prevent
safety hazard to workers or damage to the environment
arising from improper operation.

° The Group also requires engineering contractors
to comply with and undertake to abide by all
requirements under the “Management Measures for
Safety and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies
and requirements under ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the safety
before, during and after the construction in order to
ensure the operation safety and environmental hygiene.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group’s
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also participates in
various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment from time to time in
hope to continue to manufacture with relatively high
efficiency equipment, reduce energy consumption per
unit, reduce the cost of electricity used for operation,
thereby implement energy management and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2023, the Group's primary production bases
maintained a green procurement policy to achieve a
carbon emission control. Specific accomplishments
include: (a) continuous efforts in procurement at local
production places; (b) maintain the use of biomass energy
and production use unit demand purchase; (c) completion
of 100% procurement target for electrical appliances
with energy-saving labels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

High quality is an important core capability which the Group has
always maintained. In order to give customers full confidence in
the quality of the products, the Group continues to improve quality
control and achieve customers’ expectations through high standards
of quality control to create quality products and live up to customers’
satisfaction.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

° In order to maintain the core competitiveness of the
product quality, the Group continues to maintain various
food safety management systems, including GMP+Feed
Safety Assurance, ISO 17025, HACCP, ISO 9001 and
FSSC 22000, and to enforce them on relevant production
aspects so as to enhance its competitiveness and satisfy
customers’ requirements on quality and the requirements
of food safety standards. In addition, the Group decided
to implement the new agreements and rules on relevant
foods announced by the governments during 2022, and
internal education training was implemented to ensure
that the new agreements were fully carried out.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

o In 2023, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group’s product in the random inspection was
approximately 0.16% in 2023, and it was maintained
to enhance the system for the traceability of source
management.

o The Group performed a product recall drill in July 2023
for every main product (MSG, flavour seasoning, modified
starch, maltose syrup, rice protein, animal and plant liquid
and solid feed, and Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds),
enabling it to face potential circumstances with ample
experience.

BE:2EmE BEEMR

EmEARSTERBRB N HEENEZZ O
HeBTREERHTmmBEATENGEL &
ErEhitEREEY TERSRENRE
EERENFTFAHE EHEESmENER
REZREE-

BRAEAERNDITUTERETERE !

(1) HEERRERZZRE

J BTHERRZOBRBNZERRE
EEFEHEGMP+Feed Safety
Assurance~ISO 17025~HACCP~
ISO 9001 +FSSC 22000BE ML EE
BRHF TERNSERANENE
B UREHRIFEN EINEZAD
RERERZEEREER RILZ
b E2022F ERRI B B IEITEM
EXRFASHNERERBFEGN
MEERRESE WHRATARABHS
R RETNEEREMIT

s HKERIFMLEEZRBEMRE
HNEMAEEERSERANE A
RUESHE

o  EKEM02ERBENSATEHR
NEEESMERNE LA
N EE A E RS FE

s EEHHNSHRERETHIE E
EAAHE 2023 £ @ ERBR
REEEN0.16%  WIFEM®TTA
{CIREEEIZ MM RYHE -

o EEM2FEHFEER KB R
DREROR AL B R - B HHER K
ER) BR7TEBMET—REMM
WREFREREE EEATAREN
AR RE Y PTAE B AERIAR T ©

Annual Report 2023 F 3R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2)

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations

As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
“operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

Addressing customers’ opinions and feedback and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2023 (one inspection in every two months)
to ensure that the management measures are duly
implemented by every department.

The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group’s reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group’s anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group's assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group’s system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2023.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company’s active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.
The followings set forth a summary of the Group's community
development and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has cooperated with the Government of
Dong Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital, Taiwan
and Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for nine consecutive
years to carry out international medical support activities which
benefitted over ten thousand people. In 2022, in response to
the “Month of Humanity (A2 H) ] event organized by the
Vietnam Red Cross, the Vietnam plant worked together with
the University Medical Shing Mark Hospital to provide a caring
and free clinic for 200 people in Dong Nai Province.

(2) Continuous promotion of study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group
not only entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration
Memorandum” with numerous higher education institutions,
but also regularly carried out study encouragement in
accordance with the local government policies and gave
scholarships and donations for construction of schools in
a bid to provide better education to outstanding students
in order to encourage students to study hard. In 2023, the
Group specially sponsored the construction of a computer
classroom in a national middle school in Ha Tinh Province,
Vietnam, to promote a high-quality and equal digital education
environment.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(3)

(4)

Encouragement to employees to participate in social
welfare activities

The Group always encourages its employees to participate in
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of
the Group and their families have set an example by working
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite
their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.

In 2021, affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing
was implemented nationwide, which reduced the frequency
of people’s going out and affected their willingness to donate
blood, and thus triggered a blood inventory alarm. In view
of this and in response to the initiative of “Blood Donation
with Love (—i@M &5 E) > the Vietnam plant organised
a "“Humanity Blood Donation (AZ&3#810) | event in 2022 and
2023 in cooperation with the local government. In addition,
the Vietnam plant organised a “Weekend Prevention of Dengue
Fever Disease GER TR & B EAR) J activity for 57 schools in
2023 in cooperation with the Red Cross of Long Thanh County.

Continuous charity and public welfare activities

To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help impoverished
families, the Group adheres to the concept of gaining healthy
lives through flavourful and delicious food and organises
various activities such as “Spreading Warmth at the End of the
Year”, “Gratitude Fund”, “Building Warm-Hearted House” and
“Poverty Fund” every year to provide the most appropriate
support to the needy.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(5)

(6)

Facilitation of environmental protection and energy
conservation education

In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of
energy and climate change issues among all people, the Group
cooperated with the local government and international
organisations every year to promote the concept of forest
conservation by organising different activities such as “Green
Sunday”, “Tree Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing
Competition” and “Classification of Household Waste”,
and sponsor a variety of environmental protection funds in
an endeavour to facilitate environmental protection, forest
conservation, forest expansion and improve the ecological
environment.

Generation of a centripetal force towards society by
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day,
tug-of-war competitions for employees, commending senior
employees, establishing party organisations and organizing
activities in a bid to enhance a sense of belonging of the
employees to the local culture and earn recognition of the
Company from communities.

Tree Planting & Save the Earth
TEEES BRI
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Community Epidemic Prevention to
Improving Environmental Sanitation
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“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare, and sound corporate governance. The Group will continue
to improve and formulate the most complete development solutions
which integrate operating procedures, and will continuously strive for
corporate excellence, facilitating social development and creating a
better environment.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility and develop
green economy. The Group expects not only to continue to grow
and develop in the food industry, but also to have a significant
influence — It will also focus on climate change, including issues such
as carbon reduction in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.

MZEIRIE KECE  RAEBAOKE €
S REREELARBIRIT AT GRAEN
BEXAER-RZMAZBKEFIREENERE B
MREEEHNBERXERE HELET S
REztEELR=-EXEEINERER LK
FENE BIURTHBAESEERENER
FEBAFBEREEIHMEE REHL S
ERIAIGSRIENHEE-

FEERSEZHMERKBEREE FERS
EERKRAEGXEE - HERRARIBRERN
REHBENEEARE BRERBAPRANER
BRTBHAE TAMBENRERZFZ/HE
ABEEIT - FFR -HEE KREAKRKTE &
ZTRIXFERTRRE HEREBNEE
FR HEZEEHRRENBZERE 8
REFHENREER

EEEEEEHEER REREEETT —HiL
KERRNBABER DR RFRFEER
EMEMZOENEHLEERES ERGE
BE SERETEERmEERURELER
X BEREEENTEN ERRARRBREL
BREARERENR T HEAMIKIRIE X E
ERB HRIEFRE-
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- g hERBRSMHE

The Group's compliance of General Disclosures and KPIs: ERETREEMEAREVIEEZETE
7

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE-HHERERBEIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEHR -EE - —RIRERBRERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRBTrLARRE) FREERBEZETER

A. Environmental

IRiE
A1 Emissions: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
B - — %M EE (2016.1.1%E %)

Information on:

FRBRBEREHR AKRIMNGFS AERESER

MNELEEW .
(a)  the policies; and As stated in the section
(@) B, & headed “Environmental

Protection (1) Emission

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a management” in this

significant impact on the issuer report _ .
(b) BFHBFTABEALENEEEEREFANER - mEmEE NREREC)H
BB St

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

2 (WERIIREEASCY MEtYREMZREREERRIRE
pEE Y/

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

2 QRERBEE_StHK - BR-Staa - amamtay - 281t
R 7S mACH

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

2 QFEEERMERKKAMMmMATESE-

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF- (G RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR -BE —REBERERBERER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRBTrLARTE

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RAREIEIR(2017.1.14E %)

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

RSRERUERA | YRR B R -

KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

RAREMIERA1.2 EERBABNE WUWsE) &k WMER) &
EMUSESE A SERKMHE -

KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FARBRENEEM I MEEEEEEYRE CIEHE) &k (N8
R ZE (MUASESEMN §EREE) °

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FABERIERA 4 FMEEREEEYEE UEEE) K (N3
B EBE MUSESEMN SERKHHE) o

BRFE -HEREBBEHESDNZHER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FEEERBZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
WHREERIEMREN)HE
WA E R SRR

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MREE"IRIEFEN)HE
W E R EEHRUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MRS "IRIEMREN)HE
WY E R EEHRUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MREZ " RIBHRE)H
W ER " E UM
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF- 1B RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)

(continued)

A2 Use of
Resources:

HIRGER -

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR BE- —REBREARBEYRER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRBTrLARRE)

KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

RS RAEIRA1S | AR PR BN RPAIEMR -

KPI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
FARERIEREA 6 HIEEEERESEEEYNG E  REE
EENEHERFAERER-

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

— AR EE (2016.1.1%%)

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

ERERER (BEER KREMEME) AIEER -

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
2 ERUVARLEE -REFE EH -BF BrRES-

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT

B(RIE-HERERHREES D ZHER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FREERBEZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MREEIRIEREN)HE
W ER " EERUR

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

ML EERIBRE)H
W ER " E UM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEERIBEREQ)E
RERAEE ZEEHMM



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HgRkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RIBE-HERERREIESI Y Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
FEHR -EE - —RIXBERARENER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRBTrLARTE FEEERBZETER

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RSB EMISIZ (2017.1.1%£ %)

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. As stated in the section
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per headed “Environmental
unit of production volume, per facility). Protection (2) Resources
RARAMISRA2. REBAE DN EER, SHEEER (WE R usage management” in
gom) RFEE UTETRESE) REE MUASESEM -§H this report

RhstE) o MRES " RIFEFRE () E

BERAESE ZEEHMM

KPI' A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit As stated in the section

of production volume, per facility). headed “Environmental

ARG MIERA2.2  BEKERTE MMUSES B SERKRM Protection (2) Resources

8 o usage management” in
this report

MBEERRRE(2)E
REREE EEHAUL

KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and As stated in the section

results achieved. headed “Environmental

RREMIEEA23 e RER M m st 8 RFAERR - Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MBEERIBRE(2)E

REREE Eaf
KPI A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing As stated in the section
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results headed “Environmental

achieved. Protection (2) Resources
RARENIEIRA2 .4 M REGEA KR LRI BEEFIMRE > LUKRIE  usage management” in
H Ak 5T B R TSR R © this report

MBES RIRREQ)E
RIEREE S
KPI' A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in  As stated in the section

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. headed “Environmental

RARAEMIGIZA2.5 - M ETAEEMMNESE (WUNEstE) & Protection (2) Resources

(WER) SEEBMGE- usage management” in
this report

MBEEREREQL)E
REREE EEHRUR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- g hERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RIE- e RERREIESI Y Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
FEHR -EE - —RIKBERARENER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRBTrLARRE) FREERBEZETER

A3 Environment

and Natural

Resources: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

IRERRAER : —RRIEEE (2016.1.14 %)
Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the As stated in the section
environment and natural resources. headed “Environmental
BEETAHRIERRABRERNERZENEE - Protection (3) Environment

and natural resources
management” in this
report
MBEE"RIERE IR
BRAARBERER"EM
KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RS A IEIZ(2017.1.14£ %)

KPI A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on As stated in the section
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to headed “Environmental

manage them. Protection (3) Environment

RARRAAMISIZAS . HMEBEHNHRERRXAETERNEARTEZ  and natural resources

RERNEEAREZENTE management” in this
report

MEmEEREIRE ()R
BRRAEREE"EMH

94 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B3 BB (1ZA3) BIRAT



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE-HERERERSIESI ) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMBAKER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures THREEREZ

IRETHEE BEKE E1TIER

B. Social #t &

I. Employment and
Labour Practices
—ERREIER General Disclosure

B1 Employment: (effective from 2016.1.1)
B : —RIEE (2016.1.15%)

Information on:
BERENREE BEREH
TS BB FEKE 2
- RERUAREMFTERE
ik

=

the policies; and As stated in the section
Bk & headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report

=

(b) compliance with relevant

e 25T ATy R
M P BRI EHER S
on the issuer st
b) BFHBETABEATE ’
HAERERRAAMNEY

relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- g hERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

BRI -HERERRSES)ZHER

()

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER EE —REERMBAKER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
EiT1ER

B2 Health and

Safety:
REAZZ:

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRR (32A%) BRAE

IRETHEE

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—RIRE (2016.1.14 %)
Information on:
BHREZ2IFRERFER
ERGHEMREEN

D

the policies; and

BiR 5 &

D

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

b)) BFHETABEAXE
HIER A B RRBIER o

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B1.1
RSB MIEIER T 1

KPI B1.2
RS AR 1RB1.2

Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

BER BESEE FRANK
HEESNESEH-

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and
geographical region.

IR ERARN R NH
EEMKLE.

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report

NMBREEEIEHRA

BR(ERERR 6
it

As stated in the section
headed “Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREETETEHRA
BRI RERR ZH
g

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBREETEIRRA
BRo)RRT2HER
W TIERIR S HA



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

BRFE -HEREBBEHESDNZHER

(&)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMBAKER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B2.1
PR EIE1ER2.1

KPI B2.2
RS R 1517B2.2

KPI B2.3
PR 351282.3

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.

RIFRGEMETHABRLE

Lost days due to work injury.

RIGRAIFRE-

Description of occupational
health and safety measures
adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HRFRANEERREARZER
it URABARTRER %

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
B1TER

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBEETBIRRA
BRI REZ 2 AR
B TEIRIR | E R R
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBREETEIRRA
BR4)RRZ 2 HER
M TIERIR S HR
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MEEEBTERA
BROEREZ2ERE
WM TIERIR S HR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF- 1B RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)

(continued)

B3 Development

and Training:

B3ZR R :

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER EE —REERMBAKER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—fRiEE(2016.1.1.5%)
Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BERRARERTIGREN
K38 R 352 A RO BUSR AR I

o

Note:  Training refers to vocational
training. It may include
internal and external courses
paid by the employer.

H BIERESN TEER
BEMENRIMIRE

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRR (32A%) BRAE

KPI'B3.1

MR ENIERB3.

KPI B3.2

HRENIEES3.2

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BRRE-MRENER

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and
employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle

management).

BURRESER WERER
E-HREEEZ) BRI

EEBALL.

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
Rt REEENR D B4R
BRMRHIN TR

BRI -HERERRSES)ZHER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
EiT1ER

As stated in the section
headed "employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
NREEETIERA
BRG)ERAEE
kg

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MBEETBTIERA
BROZERASEIE
i g

As stated in the section
headed "employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MEEEBEIRRA
BRG)EREE E
Rt



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RIBE-HERERREIESI Y Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMBAKER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREERKEZ
IRETFHER BEHE BiTIER
B4 Labour General Disclosure
Standards: (effective from 2016.1.1)
B4¥ T #8 — R E(2016.1.1.5%)
Information on:
BRABILETHAMETH
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
(@) B3R R headed “Employee

Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in

(b) compliance with relevant this report

laws andl regglatioqs that MBLEEIE T BN
have a significant impact BRI (6)% T8 B
on the issuer it
(b)) BFHETABEARE
HIERE B RRBIRVER o
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BRRE-HRENER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to  As stated in the section
AR B IEIER4.1 review employment practices to  headed "Employee
avoid child and forced labour. Practice and Benefit (6)
IR B IE AR 2 Labour standards” in
BIRAEIH o this report
NHREEBETIERA
BRI(6)% T2 8 H
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to  As stated in the section
AR AERI51ZR4.2 eliminate such practices when headed “Employee
discovered. Practice and Benefit (6)
HAERRERBREERER  Labour standards” in
BERFTRRN S & o this report
NMREEEIEHRA
BH(6)% T8 Z&
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

BRI -HERERRSES)ZHER

()

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER EE —REERMBAKER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
[@1TER

B5 Supply Chain
Management:

HIERER

IRETHEE

General Disclosure

(effective from 2016.1.1)

— MR E (2016.1.1%%)
Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
EEMHEENIRGE R SRR
o

100  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFHEIPR (H2A%) BIRAF

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B5.1
RS SR 15 1RB5.1

KPI B5.2
RSB MIE1EB5.2

Number of suppliers by
geographical region.

BHEE HHHREEHE -
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.
BOERERREENEN [
HYTEHEANHEEHE
UREHABHANRTRERR
e

As stated in the section
headed "“Supply Chain
Management” in this
report
MREEHERER
St

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management (1), (2)
and (3)" in this report

MBEEHERER
(M QKB) IZE R



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HHERERHEMEE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE-HERERERSIESI ) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMBAKER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures TREERTEZ
IRETRER EERE [@1TER
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
EmERE: —fRE (2016.1.14%)

Information on:
AP M E R RIS A R E A
Z2 EE - BERMEEEMN

RERHEN
(@) the policies; and As stated in the section
@ BE, kK headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
(b) compliance with relevant MBEETERETN)
laws and regulations that =6

have a significant impact
on the issuer

b) BFHETABEARE
HER AR RARNNER -

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- g hERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE-HHERERBREIESI N Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER EE —REERMBAKER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
EiT1ER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures
BEHE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold ~ As stated in the section
R R BN I51ZB6.1 or shipped subject to recalls for headed “Product
safety and health reasons. Responsibility (1)" in
BENBEXERBHEHRREZE  this report
HEREAMARKNESL WMEREEEREE()
St
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service  As stated in the section
B R I51EB6.2 related complaints received and headed “Product
how they are dealt with. Responsibility (2)" in
REMRERKRBNEZFAE  this report
MR EH %o MESEEREEQ)
SHRGL
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating ~ As stated in the section
BB A NI51EB6.3 to observing and protecting headed "Product
intellectual property rights. Responsibility (1)" in
EAEERRENBEERR  this report
HYE o MREEERERN))
Eg-apen
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance  As stated in the section
HRENIE1R86.4 process and recall procedures. headed “Product
EREE2RTBRERERCWKE  Responsibility (1)" in
Feo this report
MBREETERER())
S
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data  As stated in the section
BB EMIEIEB6.5 protection and privacy policies, headed “Product

102 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B3 BB (12823) HIRAT

how they are implemented and

Responsibility (1) in

monitored. this report
HRHEEBERRERLBER NMESEEREE()
B UREBRRATREERE.  EHNR



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RIBE-HERERREIESI Y Z2HER

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMBAKER

“Comply or explain”

Provisions Recommended Disclosures
(RETHEE BEKE
B7 Anti-corruption: General Disclosure
R&S: (effective from 2016.1.1)

—REE (2016.1.14%)
Information on:
ERBLER 9% HERE
R

=

the policies; and

HR; &

&

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARE
HAEREERRHNER

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal

R AN 1287 1 cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the
Cases.
RERANEZETAREESR
HiIEBENE SRR ANY
BRRER

KPI B7.2 Description and preventive

B 1512872 measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BEMBEERERESF UK
HRATREERE-

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
B1TER

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in
this report

mKEERESHA]
X006

As stated in the
section headed “Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures in
(1)" this report

MBEEEREGHA
(ON=x:1 ¢ur

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures in
(2)" this report

MBEEEREGHA
2) | EHiR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- g hERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE-HERELRREIESI Y Z2HER

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE ()
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER EE —REERMBAKER

“Comply or explain”

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
EiT1ER

Provisions Recommended Disclosures
IRETRER EERE
1ll. Community
= HE
B8 Community General Disclosure
Investment: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HERE ! —MKE (2016.1.1£%)

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRMUHBSHRTBEEME
HEEENRGHEREZHEE
R BHIRMEE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BREE-RRENER
KPI B8.1 Focus are as of contribution
B R NI51EB8.1 (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
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B o
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g.
R EMIEIEBS.2 money or time) to the focus
area.
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104 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B3 BB (1283) HIRAT

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MBREEHELEA
BENTIBHRR

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
MBREEHELER
BERH(1)-6) L EH
As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MBREEHELEHA
BENT I BHRR



Report of Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

Preface
For review of the Group’'s business, the description about major risks
and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
Report.

Subsequent events after year end date
No major event that influences business operation of the Group has
occurred since 31 December 2023 (the balance sheet date of the
financial year) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth's natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.
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Report of Directors

In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4. Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6. Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.
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FEFEBTEEEM ZBEREER  EMHEME
RIRDRERENE RAEEETIZXERE
B BE2ETXZRRE BHEFIIN
AEHLZEFHENTLEHE

FEERSRFERD ZIRIBFRERE !

1. TENEBHARESRRBREEZEZR.

2. GEFFUEIRAEZE REREKRR
BERZRAET

3. ERMATZEER @RV ER
BEK > REEEYE SRR

4. REBERZEOWEFNAAE LUEMRELYE
HIEHEZBER -

5. RRF - ZERBEZBEISMASEIZI
B UMERRBRLHEY -

6. SBEEHRELKBERFHEERAITH
Mo MRERKRETNE  UERFEREZ
BAYo

BTFERRER

FEEFEBMEERE N (BRkPE) BAN
HERER BRECEBR -AEBEEDFIU
REmEkRE ML TEZRENHER
BeEgE DNBEFE *EBRTMEEARE
FEHEEBTEEEMBEKBERNERZER

BES - ZERREEENTIERE
FEBRBBEELEEEM AT ATHRATE
®E HHESZENERREHIKIINZINHA
BEI RAFFEREZEERE -cEEHE
THREABRL RUEBHENIFRRERETIE
EURBEEE FE RELERN AEER
HEEEENENEAFLEEY 5B RAE
BEXEARES EEBEESAT RAEEXE
RERRSH-ROBEERN BERRETH
ERBKEZE-



Report of Directors

The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group’s regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group’s
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 127.

In 2023, an interim dividend of 0.229 US cents (2022: Nil) per
share, totalling US$3,487,000 (2022: Nil) was paid. The Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.2298 US cents
per share, totalling US$3,499,000 (2022: Nil) for the year ended
31 December 2023. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend will be paid in cash on 11 June 2024 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
30 May 2024.

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2023 amounting to US$113,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Act and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution
to the Company's shareholders are set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2023.

AEBEEERBEIRTNESNREG B
EEERERFMEERAMNER TR KEFK
B EEn AR HERE  TEE)
RUHEREREERN BREERERER
ERF - HAEENRKEZEEERHAHERMH
R ERRBEAERNEERIZE FIEXRE
BRE—FERAMA - A2FRRAEZRA > 12
SR RE S o

FERHMETFNERKERISEER
TEBFrAAEREERBEERBET KB
BoEHAOMERRE BERBEEREH
B LURRFIARERREERABR hAIEE
BERZL LA -AEBETRHEREREMZER
HEmDEBRRBREERER UWRFRAZFRE
HEEENERRRG FERRIERTRR
REEIIEHER R ETHAEENREN
ERF RELHREFNGFERHF-

rEEBE_Z_-_F+A=+—HLEFE
WEEHNF127ENGRaRER

AR ZEER MNP HEREASER0.229
%ﬂh(:%:: ) > B33,487,000& T (=
T ®  EEgERBRERBE_ZT_=
fﬁ+—ﬁ + BIEEERARESIR0.2298
El> 53,499,000 T (ZEZZF 1 ) o
FRENRELTERREFEARG LHLER
REREBNR S ZWEANB+— Eluiﬁaéﬁ
AENAFRBE_NERB=+HRZINEA
IREEEEEMAYARER o

RBE_ZE-_=F+"B=+—HILEFE &
EEE/EHIER113,000E T

FRABRZF_=F+"B=+—HAHDIK
FERABRRORNDEEHE REREHS
REERFRABEBERMAUTE RFEER
MR RS M B RRM 33

TABRREEARBERABDHEREE
F+-A=+—HLEFEERABE" EEIEIZJZH:"%
KABRR o

=z =

Annual Report 2023 F 3R



Report of Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the percentage of revenue
from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers combined was less than 30%.
Information in respect of the Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier
9.4%

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers combined 39%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued shares) had an interest in these major suppliers.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 3,945 employees,
3,740 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 179
by subsidiaries in the PRC, 17 by the Taiwan Branch and 9 by the
Cambodia Branch. The Group’s employees are remunerated in
accordance with prevailing industry practices, and with reference
to the financial performance of the Group and performance of
individual employees. Other fringe benefits such as accommodations,
meals, insurance, medical coverage and provident fund are provided
to employees to ensure staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness.
To enhance the quality of human resources, bolster the professional
skills and management abilities of employees and build localised
workforces, the Group provides job rotation as well as internal
and external training courses and seminars on professional skills,
languages, etc.

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong
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Report of Directors

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen, Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng
and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 32 to 36.

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of Directors of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), were as follows:—

REBEERBDZEBEEZMAE7()NIF HEELE
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Interests in shares

RiHPzZEDR
Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued shares

(Long Position) of the Company

Name Capacity TiEREE EERTBEET

2 g1 (F &) KRB

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%

BEEESAE controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)
RHERZEEZ#E (i 5E1/3)

Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%

BIEfE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)
RHEERZEEZ#E (ffsE2523)

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%

ERERELE BEEBEAA

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

HIEREE BEEBEAA
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Report of Directors

Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
more than one-third of the voting power of King International Limited
("King International”). Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to
have interest in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest in the
169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng had in
the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been granted such rights.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2023 are as follows:

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung was appointed as the chairman of Champion
Marketing Co., Ltd. (an affiliated company of Taiwan Vedan) from August
2023.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2022 annual report of the Company.
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Report of Directors

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2024.

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of one year commencing on 27 June
2003. Such service agreements may continue thereafter from year
to year until terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by
either party to the other following the expiration of the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of one year commencing on 1 April 2024.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either
party to the other.

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year commencing on 1 April 2024. Mr.
CHAO and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. CHAO do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. CHAQ's appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either
party to the other.
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Report of Directors

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year commencing on 1 April 2024. Mr.
Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year commencing on 1 April 2024. Mr.
Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either
party to the other.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of one year commencing on 1 April 2024.
Mr. Huang and the Company may, upon or before the expiration
of the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be)
thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement
for another year. If the Company and Mr. Huang do not agree to
extend, the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Huang’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either
party to the other.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

Except for the service contracts detailed above and continuing
connected transactions detailed below, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.
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Report of Directors

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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Note Us$'000
M 5 FE7T
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan Group A MEERKAEEHEESSR (i) 3,305
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MEeEKAXZM (ii) 2,184

Rz ik &

Taiwan Vedan

(i) The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),
MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
7 December 2020, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2023. The Directors believe that the sale of goods
to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group.

M EE

() FHEFREASEKAKEWBAR (FEMH
MEATRN) (BEEKAER) HEETA
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2 &= EPR7,000,000% T EEREIREBEAE
HERZRNAEKAERHEEER BALE
B REEINEA ©
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Report of Directors

(if)

(iii)

On 4 May 2021, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into the
supplemental agreement on substantially the same terms as the Taiwan
Sales Agreement, so as to revise the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions under the Taiwan Sales Agreement for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2023 from US$7,000,000
to US$50,000,000.

US$3,305,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$50,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 4 May 2021.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 7 December 2020, the Company and
Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision of
such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2023. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group’s future business
developments.

US$2,184,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 7 December 2020.

The prices of goods and services provided to connected persons of the
Company are determined within the normal commercial price range
and the price quotation of the product is determined after taking
into account the production cost and the local market price of the
product with an aim to maintain the overall gross profit margin within
a reasonable range. The management of the Company has reviewed
the prices of transactions with connected persons and those with other
independent customers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the pricing
and terms with connected persons are fair and reasonable, and has
reported the relevant information at least once every six months to the
Board for review.

Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company's shareholders as a
whole.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

(i)

(iii)

e

RIZZ—EFANB ARAFHESEKAE
REEHERBEARER ZERTILETH
BFOUREBEE—_S_=F+"A=+—HI=
BMBREESERGEHERBETZHE
REXRBZEE LRHBA7,000,000E T A
50,000,000 75 °

RBEE_ZE-_=F+"A=+—BLHHE
B AEEREEKAEEHEERZFER
%87#33,305,000& 0> TR BBRBERAZE
T—ERANHZBEAESHRREZEERS
+PR50,000,000% 53 ©

BEKAEERRAAERRES FRMEIE
R¥E-RZEZEE+ZBtH ARQFHE
BIEAMRAEERAERRARERREZERG
HimE BT —&FE—HFB—HBEZZT=
FE+ZRA=+—HL AH=F (BHZER
1) oRIERARR ARG IRER M B
HEEMZREELERATGBBEE_S
T=FE+ZA=+—HLEZEMBEESEZ
&= £PR2,500,000% 5 - EHHE R EEK
EEESEMEE BEAEMZRKRERS
BAEF -

RBEE_ZE-_=F+"A=+—BLHHE
B AEERGEERAEEZREEEES
2,184,000E 7w LR BENRBHRAZZE-E
+ZBtHZBEASHEEZAMERS LR
2,500,000 75 ©

AABDHMAEALZERERFERDU—RK
AEEEEREERT BERREHEEX
ERZEERFREMTHEERRREERE
B RNUREEENRERTSENENSE
ERER-FAREEERTMEAEALZR
SEBRREMBIER 2R ZERETRS
NEEMBEBALTZEEBRFERAFTEE  BR
LENEARBERENARESTEER-

FABRBUFATEFCERALABET
TZESA AT HLEFEENFERER
ZoBIUFRTEFTHEI LIRBAERZTH(a)E
FEBNWEEEBRTIL ; (b)ER—REBEK
M EEFRRET ; RORBERAZZH R
BT BRATEE LEANAEARARKREN
BEANmE-



Report of Directors

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on page
113 of the annual report in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 32
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 214 of the annual
report.
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Report of Directors

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2023, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BARBMA R_BE_=Z=F+"A=+—
H BREXFRBEAADEFHARSTHRAES
DN UTALTRERF RN FHEERE
BERHAERPIBEXVERE 2R B37 B Z IR XA
BAARKENED  HIAERBRBES
REAGIEGIE336IRFIFE 2 B L MBI ¢

Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares issued shares
(Long Position) of the Company
Name Capacity ZiEREE HERTE
18 515 (#FR) BITRMBESL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
BEREAA (Note 1)
(BFEET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
("Taiwan Vedan”) corporation (Note 1)
R ERMERAT (T&EK) REEZER X #ER (MFEE1)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
BB A
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BmEAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BB A
REEERMBRAE Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%
BmEAA
Notes: Mk -
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion PowerZ &EBKANEZEMB AR > K

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2023, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.
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Report of Directors

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77%, 9.89%, 6.18%, 8.24%, and
6.18% interest in Taiwan Vedan, respectively and they were therefore
considered as having an interest in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group's business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Both Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. Yang, Cheng are responsible
only for the overall strategic planning and the business development
of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group, while the daily business
and operational plans of the Group are managed by Mr. Yang, Kun-
Hsiang and an independent management team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr.
Yang, Chen-Wen and Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou are mainly responsible for
the company’s procurement strategies of bulk raw material and the
company’s marketing and product planning in the Taiwan market.
In the Group, both Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen and Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou
provide guidance and assistance for selling the Group's products in
Vietnam and the PRC markets. Furthermore, Taiwan Vedan and the
Group are operated by separate sales teams which are independent
of each other, while market segmentation shall comply with the
territorial delineation agreement signed by the Group and Taiwan
Vedan. The Directors are therefore of the view that the management
and the operational functions of the Group are independent of and
separate from those of other members of the Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group's business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

YANG, Kun-Hsiang
Director and Chief Executive Officer
19 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 125 to 213, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue FHFITEZBstPRINBAEEAFTERBANIKE

recognition.

Key Audit Matter
RRESEE

E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB A RIEMRBENEE

Revenue Recognition

Wi 2o FE BT

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2RRAMBRRWES

The Group recognised revenue from sales of goods
amounted to approximately US$386 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
REE-FE=F+"A=+—HILEE> E£ER
RIHEERZWEHAI386EEETT

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when or as the control of the products
is transferred to the customer. The risk and reward of
ownership have been transferred to the customer upon
delivery of products or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance has been satisfied.
HEEMZWENEREFEERER P AR R
RoEAENEBAERENRERRNN SEEAR
B EAMmA MR ECRERRERER R
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition
included:

RPIARMKRDEEDRNEF S

1.

2.

3.

We understood and evaluated the revenue recognition
policy of the Group by reviewing the sales contracts
entered with the customers on a sample basis and
discussed with management.
EMAemEERRE R INHESAREEIERE
R TRRHE BEBMNERESIBER-

We understood, evaluated, and tested the relevant
management’s controls in respect of the Group's
revenue recognition process.
BMETH ST RAEERAEEEH S£EEMWK
70 T 5 O A2 BR AN B 4252 8l FE i o

We tested revenue transactions recognised in relation
to the sales of goods by examining, on a sample basis,
the relevant supporting documents including sales
orders, goods delivery notes and invoices.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matter
FESEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KBt R ERR S E1E

Revenue Recognition

Wi 2 FE BT

We focused on this area due to its financial significance
and high volume of transactions involved. As a result, a
significant amount of effort was spent on auditing this

area.
HEMBEZEUERIRAER S  RAFEEINZT@E
Ft > HPIRARETFESZTE

4. We confirmed the balances of trade receivables with
selected customers, considering the significance of the
balances and the nature and characteristics of those
customers.
RMACHERFBIEKREZET EFEEIZ
ERPAGNEEEURE B MG

5.  We tested sales transactions recorded before and
after the balance sheet date, on a sample basis, by
reconciling recognised revenue with the goods delivery
notes to assess whether revenue was recognised in the
correct reporting periods.
BPBEAZEEIREEHEmE
EEERHABRENHERS
IERERY IR S HAR FE 50 o

é AR E
s DUET s R A

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that
the Group’s revenue recognised was supported by the
evidence that we obtained.
RIBRMPAAITHESRER BMUFR > RABENERX
F EEEEINKE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2024

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

o  HERAMBHRENERIERSN EHE
MRS SERE URGEMBERRE
BRERBEAXZMEER-

e m BEEENERHAEBIHNMBE
HERTREEEEEE UBGREME
BRRUFRBR-RMEE BEEEFH
A BEEHNRT -RMAABFERAE
EREE-

FREMERI RALEFEEGEE T E
NESHE FRZH EXFFERSEE
BEHFIEE TR H A HI R R ERI R EME
KEARG o

HABEREFZEERIER RPHMER
BEMBIMHNERERERER W E P
BEAUEGEMKIB TR ERMBILMEN
FREMGEMEMEER UREEANBERT
RLUHRRE BT EE BB ITE S REAIRS
&

REBAZEGBENFER  KAEEMHLE
FEHNAHRAMBRERNEARAEE
MEBMARBETFE RFIEXBENRE T
MEBLEFIR BRIFARERTAFARKESE
EER FAEBBEFERNBERT IREGER
HAERMARSPIREFTHEERNNEERREB
BEENATRAD RAREFEERS P
MZFER

HARBIYZBEMEBENEFEESBABR
Ao

BERKEE S EFFR
BEE ST

E8 “E_ME=B+AH



Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

®+ZHA=+—H
2023 2022
—EZ= —F——
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5% F=T FET
ASSETS BiE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 6 138,193 152,074
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 4,600 5,152
Intangible assets EEEE 8 1,527 2,080
Long-term prepayments REAFEMRIAE 13 1,527 1,301
Investment in an associate R—REBERERZRE 10 5,013 4,174
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 150,860 164,781
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =758 12 137,680 140,527
Trade receivables FEU B 5 BRFR 13 33,755 33,990
Prepayments and other FEAT R IE R EoA
receivables FEWLFRIE 13 10,084 18,738
Amounts due from BB REANLTRIE
related parties 32(d) 772 126
Structured bank deposits EREMIRITER 14 990 -
Short-term bank deposits FEHAIRITER 14 19,693 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 14 29,676 47,810
Total current assets REEEHE 232,650 241,191
Total assets BEERE 383,510 405,972
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners AT HEE AELED
of the Company
Share capital i 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves ] 16 279,330 276,260
294,558 291,488
Non-controlling interest IR RS 225 230
Total equity B4R RE 294,783 291,718
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022
=== g
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5% F= FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities EREER
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 1,992 3,431
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 17 2,744 3,035
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRSIRBRE 19 150 577
Retirement benefit obligations BABHNERE 27 1,484 1,526
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEFELLE 6,370 8,569
Current liabilities mENERE
Trade payables eI B Z R 17 18,391 27,591
Accruals and other payables FEEST & A R H Mg R IE 17 18,265 20,140
Amounts due to related parties B AEREALHRE 32(d) 596 149
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 41,662 56,190
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 319 443
Current income tax liabilities ENHAFR S EaRE 3,124 1,172
Total current liabilities MENEFELEEE 82,357 105,685
Total liabilities BEELE 88,727 114,254
Total equity and liabilities EEkafERE 383,510 405,972

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction L4z & & E & & K FE 2 [B) 48 B M 51 — 6
with the accompanying notes. R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 213 were #RE125E213BZHEEMBERREN_-Z
approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2024 and were Z—_MAE=ZA+HhBEEEZSTHIHTIAL

signed on its behalf. RREEo
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

PR EALE i

Director Director

EE EFE

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF



Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
Note US$'000 Us$'000
i FE=T FE=T
Revenue W= 5 386,171 451,007
Cost of sales & B A 21 (330,741) (407,658)
Gross profit EF 55,430 43,349
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBX 21 (19,826) (24,566)
Administrative expenses THEHRX 21 (22,503) (22,118)
Other (losses)/gains- net Hith (518) WWE— 358 20 (122) 219
Operating profit/(loss) EHEN, (5518) 12,979 (3,116)
Finance income BTN 22 1,089 398
Finance costs I H 22 (2,880) (951)
Finance costs — net MHEEH— 35 22 (1,791) (553)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate F&E{5— & A 5 BRI & E5 18 10 (841) (528)
Profit/(loss) before income tax  [RFRABMAIEF (5i8) 10,347 (4,197)
Income tax expense gt 23 (3.346) (187)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERHN (F518) 7,001 (4,384)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: UTFTREAELEF (B518) ©
Owners of the Company KABEBA 6,986 (4,386)
Non-controlling interest JEIER S 15 2
7,001 (4,384)
Earnings/(loss) per share for TRATEEAEEEEE
profit/(loss) attributable to wH (B8 28R
the owners of the Company BH (§518)
during the year (expressed (A FREEWFHIR)
in US cents per share)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREXRF (518) 25 0.46 (0.29)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SR#BERF]  (E18) 25 0.46 (0.29)
The above consolidated income statement should be read in _Eii4s& Wi REEEBRNE —HtRE-

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December

BE+-B=+—ALEE

2023 2022
—F_= =2
USs$’000 US$'000
F=E=7x FEx
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEEHF, (5i8) 7,001 (4,384)
Other comprehensive loss: Hth2mEsE :
Item that may be reclassified to BB EEEm 2 EH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences BE R ERE (429) (3,449)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, xFEERREEMEEEIR
net of tax (429) (3,449)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) TEEREWKRA (F58) 4%
for the year 6,572 (7,833)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTEFERGEEERZR
for the year attributable to: WA (B548) #8%8 -
— Owners of the Company —KRRBEB AN 6,557 (7,835)
- Non-controlling interest — IR S 15 2
Total comprehensive income/(loss) TEEZEWRA (FBIB) 4%
for the year 6,572 (7,833)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should L #i4R & & @ UK & & F& 7 [3 48 BE Bt 5% — 6f
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B8 o

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF



Consolida:ced Statement of Changes in Equity
ralEmeBMR

Attributable to owners of the Company

EGE PN
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total equity
kx  RMEE EREE  AHEE  iERE (YRR A EiEREZ  REhE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
AT SE T£n R v ST T£n AT S
Balance at 1 January 2022 RIEZZF-A-H
Zﬁi% 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,55 301,789 28 302,017
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year XEEFE - - - - - (4,386) (4,386) 2 (4,384)
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EHR
Currency translation differences ERER - - (3,449) - - - (3,449) - (3,449)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRER - - (3,449) - - (4,386) (7,835) 2 (7,833)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ENPRLERE - - - - 27 7 - - -
Total transactions with owners BREAZBRSE
Dividends BE - - - - - (2,466) (2,466) - (2,466)
Balance at 31 December 2022 WZE-Z#+-A=+-A
Zmuiﬁ 15,228 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 291,488 230 291,718
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZZZ=F—-F—H
258 15,228 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 291,488 230 291,718
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - - 6,986 6,986 15 7,001
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EHE
Currency translation differences EREE - - (429) - - - (429) - (429)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWRA / (§518) 418 - - (429) - - 6,986 6,557 15 6,572
Total transactions with owners Eﬁi}%ﬁ)\ﬂﬁﬁ«%%ﬁ
Dividends (Note 24) B (M524) - - - - - (3,487) (3,487) - (3,487)
Dividend payable to non-controlling ﬁﬁﬂﬁ% NEFRERER
interest of a subsidiary ZRE - - - - - - - (20) (20)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+ZRA=+-H
258 15,228 47,358 6,905 79,994 901 144,172 294,558 225 294,783
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  E#i#z &S B R EEEMEREWE—H

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Fﬁ-m’o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
Note Us$’000 US$'000
B 5 FE7T FE
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEEZ
HEmE
Cash generated from/(used in) ERELE S FTR) 2
operations Re 29(a) 36,838 (22,257)
Interest paid BRFE (2,831) (1,122)
Income taxes paid BENRER (1,828) (1,335)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEESE FrA) 2z
operating activities &3R8 32,179 (24,714)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHEEZ
HE&ERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERZE
equipment (8,945) (11,390)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BEK
plant and equipment BB REMIE 29(a) 192 20
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE 8 - (20)
Allotment of new shares to an associate miE R T REWKHB 10 (1,680) -
(Increase)/decrease in short-term EERIRTTER
bank deposits (g R (19,693) 1,075
(Increase)/decrease in structured EBMIRITER
bank deposits (g R (988) 2,527
Proceeds from return on structured REEEEIRITER
bank deposits Bl 2 TS RIE 2 58
Interest received BUF S 1,083 393
Net cash used in investing activities KEFEMAZ
R& 38 (30,029) (7,337)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBEEZ
HEmE
Dividends paid ENKE 24 (3,487) (2,466)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEFRSERIE 29(b) 120,931 131,036
Repayment of bank borrowings HIBIRITEE 29(b) (136,615) (111,498)
Principal elements of lease payment HEMNRZEAEHD 29(b) (541) (644)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEE FA) EEfZ
financing activities IR&/F%8 (19,712) 16,428
Net decrease in cash and cash HRERIREEBWHLD
equivalents FEE (17,562) (15,623)
Cash and cash equivalents REVZRERIRESE
at beginning of year B 14 47,810 66,136
Exchange losses on cash RERREEEBY2
and cash equivalents bE 518 (572) (2,703)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZHAERREE
at end of year B 14 29,676 47,810

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in Lt#H4G SRS T EXREER AR MW T — 6
conjunction with the accompanying notes. BsE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of fermentation-based food additives,
biochemical products and cassava starch-based industrial
products including modified starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium
Glutamate (“MSG"”), soda, glutamic acid (“GA") and others.
The products are sold to food distributors, international trading
companies, and manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and
chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and
several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"”) and disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of non-current liabilities and plan assets of defined benefit plan
and structured bank deposits, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards which are mandatory for the Group for the first
time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKFRS17

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
information

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

The adoption of the above new and amended standards
did not have any material impact on the current period or

any prior periods.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

(a)

ISR MR 2 MR R R Z (85T
7
FEER_ZE_=F—HF—HM%
ZHMBEEERFEMUTEERR
M ERA AR R R 2 (8T
K

EAMBRIEN RRAY

£175F

ERMBREER BEMBREEN

$17% F175% (1B31%)

ERMBREEDN HRRNBEMERS

S17% ERBITRREEHR
BRE R H%R -
tLEER

ERGHER gt ER

ELACHEN)

EROHENS SHERRE

RREBHER

LR AR

EVLACHEN)

ARG HER BEE-RBNEER

F0% (BITE) BREZAPHELRE

BB G HER ERRESE-SH

F125% (B31F)  TERA

PR £ 2 R R 2 R Z (B FT A3
ENAHBNEAERABENE
REXRTZE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

UT#REEGBER_Z2-_=4—A8
—BRBZMBFEEHRER TR
BRANRMNZEZREBZETR
(B AMESTA) °

(b) The following amendments to standard and interpretation (b)
(together referred as “Amendments”) have been issued,
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2023 and have not been early adopted.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
RT3 HEEAS
ZERE®|Z
FEBEENR

Amendments to HKAS 1

HARAGTENE IR (B5T4)
Amendments to HKAS 1
EEGHERFE 1 (B5TE)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
ERAMBREENFE 165K
(BT )
Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7
ERGHENFIRREBUE
WELERET7R (BTA)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

e ESEAREEIERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Mrs B2 Em IR B a A

Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback

ERMHEMNEEaRE

Supplier Finance Arrangements
HEBREZH

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of

1 January 2024

—E_HmE—HF—H
1 January 2024
—ZE-mE—HF—A
1 January 2024
—Z2”_mE—HF—AH

1 January 2024

—E_m&E—A—H

1 January 2024

a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
(HK Int 5 (Revised))
MHBBRRZ 2N - EEAHES
BREREBEGRXZBERERZ2E
(BEHREEST (B5TR))
Lack of Exchangeability
RZ ARk

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

EABRESEST (BFTX) —ZmMFE—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 21

ERGTENE215, (1B5T4)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

1 January 2025
“E_HF—HR—H
To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

ERVYBREENFI0RNKREE REELEHBMEQBDHASELEZH FHEE
G5t ERIE285% (BRI ) WEELENEE

FABEFSTERM EBET A
HAEERZMBRE - BBEERE
MRTFEMR RN AR R RS EE R E
EURARRRRZELNEATZE
2RI R REBMBN LHEFTT A
RS T LR

The directors of the Company have assessed the financial
impact on the Group of the adoption of the above
Amendments. There are no Amendments that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions. The Group intends to
adopt the Amendments when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally with most
of the transactions denominated in US$,
Vietnam Dong and Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
through future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group. The Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2023, for the Group's
subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Us$, if the Vietnam Dong had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the US$ with
all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit (2022: post-tax loss) for the year
would have been US$969,000 lower/higher
(2022: US$750,000 higher/lower), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of trade and other receivables,
short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables

denominated in Vietnam Dong.

At 31 December 2023, for the Group'’s
subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Renminbi, if the US$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Renminbi with
all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit (2022 post-tax loss) for the year would
have been US$1,000 lower/higher (2022:
US$4,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of trade and other receivables (2022: trade

and other payables) denominated in US$.

3.1

MBERAKRER (&)
@) HHEEE ()

0]

SNEE LB (48)

A _E_Z=ZH+_-A1
=+—HB MUMEEE
BETHREEKNRBA
AMms HHEEERE
TCEZ (B FH{ES % M FR
BHMEBHER TS
NEEBRRBHM (Z
T TF L BRREBER)
R 18 1969,000
ET(CEZZF M
/#/L750,000%5T) >
TEREHELUHEEE
SHEZERE SRR
HithFE U TR IE ~ 12 HA 8R
TER - BerBESSE
BYREMNEZERIK
HthENHREMEEZ
SNEERSIE UL AR o

AZ_EBE_=FE+_"A4
=+—HB > MIEE
AHARENAREEK
BRAEME METR
ANRBEFE BZE%
M A H &S
g KEERKRER
M (ZBZ—F : BR
BEE) BRED B M
1,000 (Z&2 =
£ 1M, 84,0005
o) FEREBMEUE
TTEHENEWE 5 R
REMEWHRIE (ZF
T IE  ENESKRX
Fe E fth FE {3 ®RIB) M &
EZHNERSIE, WG o

Annual Report 2023 F 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances and
short-term bank deposits, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$27,345,000 (2022:US$59,621,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$16,309,000
(2022: Nil)

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
variable rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit (2022: post-tax
loss) for the year would have been US116,000
lower/higher (2022: US$253,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on these borrowings.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

3.1

MEEEEER (&)
(a) WHERE B
iy BRERERQATFEME
I

R AEERRITER
R 5 BRSR 1T R Oh o 1R
BEARSGREE AL
TEBZBAKREER
EREARLEBILIAZE
Fﬁiﬁﬂ'ﬁizibg’@o

T =+ =
B=+—H ZX®&£H&
@%2ﬂ$nng
BFEA ERITER
27,345,000 7% (Z &
Z”4# 159,621,000
7t) M EE R ERITE
#16,309,000& T (=
T _F I E) AR

an &
I

BABMNERRHZEE
SHEEFEHRERE
AR @A MiZEE
ERHZEBESAER
AHAFEFERR-
B EEMRBITHER
ZHRNANF—EmE
MEERABEMNE
ER > BRI AEAK-
7 £ [ 0 4 R R R
oM AEEEE
BB R R E b I
REEREEHAEKX
M= @ b o

S _E=F+ZA
=t+—HB > WEEBHE
Ef= P E by N
SOEEMmAT A H i
BEERFAE KEE
RREREMN (2T Z
F I BRREBER SR
/18 10116,000% 7T (=
T R M
253,000%7m) P X ER
HRZEBEZFER
ZIEm,m o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties.

(b)

)

(if)

Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2023 and 2022, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 14 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 47% (2022:
45%) of its trade receivables were the
five (2022: five) largest trade receivables,
which are mainly reputable corporations.
Considering the track record of regular
repayment of trade receivables based on
the Group's experience with respect to the
collection of these receivables, the directors
are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these customers is not material.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by customers is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2023
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of China
and Vietnam in which it sells its goods and
services to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 was determined as
follows for trade receivables:

3.1 MBRREER (8

b) EFERE (#)

(ih HMBEEZHME @)
FEWRE ZERFR (58)
FHEEELE - RIE
—ZTERIZIEZC
+ZB=+—HZERK
BERMZEBEBETD

EEWT
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZEo=E a8 a8 a8
31 December 2023 +ZA=+-H k] 121808 181E360R #3600 At
Expected loss rate ki) opi ok 0% 0.47% 0.95% 100%
Gross carrying amount MEREE
- trade receivables (US$'000) —FEWBRIR
(F£m) 30,064 3,384 326 331 34,105
Loss allowance (US$'000) BEEE (TZ71) - 16 3 331 350
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZEICE B B k]
31 December 2022 +ZA=1+-AH EnEA 11800 181E360H 383608 &t
Expected loss rate BHERE 0% 0.75% 3.54% 100%
Gross carrying amount MREE
- trade receivables (US$'000) —FEWE BIR
(F£m) 30,872 2,812 339 356 34,379
Loss allowance (US$'000) BEEE (TZ71) - N 12 356 389
As at 31 December 2023, the loss allowances W& =+
for trade receivables were US$350,000 (2022: B=+—H EKE

US$389,000). Management are of opinion
that that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties
The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses and is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBAMREZR (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TEEZREE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial T RERGEEHESHNE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based MBsGRTHESEAERZM
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BEESAEMIEAARE
date to the contractual maturity date. The TR -NEREPIEBEZEEE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENRBRIRERE
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than
1 year or Between Between Over
ondemand 1and2years 2and>5 years 5 years Total
—ERZREX —EERFE AEELE BRLE Bt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
SE SEH SEH TEn TEn
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F
tZA=t+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (3 43,258 1,406 742 - 45,406
Lease liabilities (Note) HEARE (W) 544 479 1,303 1,735 4,061
Trade payables I EGESH 18,391 - - - 18,391
Other payables and accruals BB FIBERE &R 7,632 - - - 7,632
Amounts due to related parties FE{37E RIE A TFIB 596 - - - 596
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE
+ZA=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (3 58,228 1,519 2,213 - 61,960
Lease liabilities (Note) BE&E () 554 463 1,303 1,735 4,055
Trade payables BAEHET 27,591 - - - 27,591
Other payables and accruals —~ EfERHIBEREH &R 8,878 - - - 8,878
Amounts due to related parties FEfiBRIE A LB 149 - - - 149
Note: FEE -
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings EREREEEESIHERE
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TEREREEABRMZFIE
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BAER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2 Capital management (continued)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total
borrowings include bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

During 2023, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2022, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were

3.2

BXREE (@
HBENHMAT K FEEUE
EEALEERBEEERER %L
RRGRCEERBRARZBEE
MRUEE AREAE -REEEE
RITRERBERR

A B =F o REBRZRIRE
T _EFMREMNEER B Th
FEEABLEERGEKE-R

as follows: TEC=ZFERIEZ_F+=ZA
=+—HBZEESGLEDT
2023 2022
—®=-= —®ECC
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7T
Total bank borrowings and RITHEREREEEE
lease liabilities 46,717 63,099
Owners’ equity (including non- A AR (B1ETA
controlling interest in equity) R 2 IEIE L) 294,783 291,718
Gearing ratio BEEABMBLX 15.8% 21.6%

The gearing ratio decreased from 21.6% to 15.8% as a
result of gradual repayment of borrowings.

() Loan covenants
Under the terms of the major bank loans, which
has a carrying amount of US$41,702,000 (2022:
US$56,578,000), the Group is required to comply
with the following financial covenants at the end of
each annual and interim reporting period:

o the ratio of equity to total assets shall be
higher or equal 65%, and

° the ratio of EBITA to current portion of long
term debt and interest expenses shall be
higher or equal 2.5

The Group has complied with these covenants
throughout the reporting period. As at 31
December 2023, the ratio of equity to total assets
was approximately 72.0% (2022: 70.3%) and the
ratio of EBITA to current portion of long tem debt
and interest expenses was approximately 10 (2022:
3).

RAELEEGR EEGRILEH
21.6% FEE15.8%°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
structured bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and amounts due to related parties are assumed to
approximate their fair values because of their short

maturities.

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its

3.3 AFEMGE

E R E W E 5 R R H g WX
BE-EWRERAEALRE E8M
RITER RBERTEIRESRK
ReEEY EBNEZRAKEM
FEIT TRIBL K FE(S B RAE A L 7IE
BREAME AEEBREHETE
R EREEREAFERS

()  AFEER
FHEBEENMBREA
BATERIKRENER
T EM AT ER LA E
Rfhst - 2R HEE R FEFR
RBEABBNAEREER £
EEREHERRERES

financial instruments into the three levels prescribed MTADEA=ERER-

under the accounting standards.

Level 2
ot )
Us$'000
FEx
Recurring fair value measurements HEMATFEE
At 31 December 2023 A ZE_=F+"HA=+—H
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABENHBEEE
profit or loss 990

Recurring fair value measurements

At 31 December 2022

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

BEIMEAFEE

RZZZ-#+-"A=+—H
MBEE
BATEFABRSNMBEE

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The Group did not change any valuation techniques
in determining the level 2 fair values.

There were no transfers among different levels of
fair values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
guoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities and for instruments where
ESG risk gives rise to a significant unobservable
adjustment.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Property, plant and equipment that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period. These
calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. For the purposes of impairment reviews,
the recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based
on the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value
in use calculations. The recoverable amount calculations
primarily use cash flow forecast based on financial
budgets and forecasts covering a period of five years
approved by management and the estimated terminal
value at the end of the forecast period.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow forecast for
the period covered by the approved budgets. Key
assumptions include the growth rates and discount rates
to reflect the risks involved. Management prepares the
financial budgets and forecasts reflecting actual and prior
year performance and market development expectations.
Judgement is required to determine key assumptions
adopted in cash flow forecasts and changes to key
assumptions could affect these cash flow forecasts and
therefore the results of the impairment review. For details,
see Note 8.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c)

(d)

Estimated expected credit loss allowance for
financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets is based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories
is written down to net realisable value when there is
objective evidence that the cost of inventories may not be
recoverable. The amount written off to profit or loss is the
difference between the carrying value and net realisable
value of the inventories. In determining whether the cost
of inventories can be recovered, significant judgements
are required. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
and the means by which the amount will be recovered.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products
of a similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer preference and competitor
actions in response to market conditions.

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has been operating
in one single business segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale
of fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products
and cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, MSG, GA and others (2022: same).

FTEEERRECHTARBANITE
B RITESEBRAEEAZBERER
ARRBARSBEER - BETSZ=F
+ZA=t—HIEEE AEELE—E
B-¥EN% MAUSEREERBERT
ME - EERRAZERMIEXER &
FEERD BEHERE KB 8B Kk
Hth (ZEBEZ_F : BF) -

(a) Revenue (a) Uk
2023 2022
—F_-= —E”°C
Us$'000 Us$'000
FE7T FE
Sales of goods HEEBY 386,171 451,007
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities MENEEERZ W

The Group receives payments from certain customers
in advance of the performance under the contracts.
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

FEERBTENRBRETER
2R FRETN AR S HE
Rzl EEaNaEZEE
RE-

2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET Fxx
Revenue recognised that was included &t AE¥ & X & &4
in the contract liabilities balance at B
the beginning of the year 4,339 5,885

During the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue of
approximately US$44,004,000 (2022: US$53,734,000) is
derived from a single external customer located in Japan.
The revenue is attributable to MSG and GA products.

All contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

BHE_ZE_-_F+"B=+—HL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

Revenue (continued) (a)
The Group's revenue by geographical location, which is
determined by the geographical presence of customers, is

as follows:

Wk (48)
NEBBZMIBUE (BEFMIBNA
BARE) Blp 2 =M T

2023 2022
ZEZ=F -
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=ET FET
Vietnam W 173,560 194,999
Japan H4s 71,045 83,083
The PRC alEi 54,965 62,663
ASEAN member countries REMEEH
(other than Vietnam) (R EfEHE) 31,185 35,991
The US ESJE| 24,456 36,256
Other regions Hihith&@ 30,960 38,015
386,171 451,007
Accounting policy of revenue recognition Wen FESRZ B EFE
(i)  Sales of goods () HEEY

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has been transferred, being when the product are
delivered, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 30 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

HERERZERESBE

(B E MR (IBy) RIFEAT
BEXREMERZRENTE
ERFESD - RERBRERE
RRNAREEMERTEERE
HHRFEERMRECEEMN
REBERR

S S M TR R
A 2 ARG o
REEEDRERTREI0D
Z S EBBIEL (HEIBE
Fl—8) KRB TERRA
R

FEWCRIE R 21 & B A3 -
RER/EDREREFRGZ
iR EAGREBEER
W ER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

(a) Revenue (continued)
Accounting policy of revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or
payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised
when goods are delivered to customers.

(b) Non-current assets, other than prepayments, by location,
which is determined by the country in which the asset is

SEEE (&)
(a) Uz (4R)
W i S 2 B 1B (48)

(i BHERE
BHNEREERARRINTE
FZzEmEZHERZEH
IRER - WEREmXTTF
R

(b) #EHUE HREEFEEZRE) 815
ZIERBEE FBMNRERI W

located, are as follows: T

2023 2022
—EC=F T

Us$'000 US$'000
F= F=T
Vietnam 2] 140,093 153,058
The PRC A ] 9,240 10,422
Total =i 149,333 163,480

150  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRS (#288) BIRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRMEE

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME-BER=HE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
HEIR NE BERES RE BAZRE At
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
e e e T TR TER
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZ&—F—H
Cost 2% 59,080 110,728 471,743 10,043 20,756 672,350
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (84,406) (397,629) (8,103) (18,880) (509,018)
Accumulated impairment RetHE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REZE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T--E+-B=1+-H
LLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Additions RE 10,425 39 1,803 646 232 13,145
Transfer EE (11,065) 3,284 7,378 268 135 -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (z£29) - 3) (34) (19) - (56)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (HizE21) - (2,887) (13,849) (548) (462) (17,746)
Written-off bz} (895) - - - - (895)
Exchange differences ERER - (487) (178) (33) (15) (713)
Closing net book amount FREAFAE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074
At 31 December 2022 RZZE_-&+-B=+-H
Cost 2% 57,545 113,156 477,869 10,420 20,990 679,980
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE - (86,888) (408,635) (8,166) (19,224) (522,913)
Accumulated impairment ZEtHE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REZE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=E+-B=1+-H
LLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074
Additions RE 5,721 179 1,928 183 269 8,280
Transfer EE (54,969) 9,663 44,907 131 89 (179)
Disposals (Note 29) HE (z£29) - (48) (236) (4) ) (290)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (HzE21) - (3.276) (17,006) (535) (473) (21,290)
Written-off sy (272) - (1) (1) (3) @17)
Exchange differences ERZES - (86) (33) (5) (1) (125)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 8,025 31,486 95,036 2,023 1,623 138,193
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-=f+-B=+-H
Cost 7% 8,025 122,797 524,282 10,670 21,318 687,092
Accumulated depreciation REtirE - (90,097) (425,489) (8,647) (19,673) (543,906)
Accumulated impairment ZEtHE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REZE 8,025 31,486 95,036 2,023 1,623 138,193
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged in
the consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘other gains — net’, in the consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure on
buildings and plant where the construction work has not been
completed, is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided for construction-in-progress.

Depreciation expense of US$20,507,000 (2022:
US$16,650,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$467,000
(2022: US$624,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$316,000 (2022: US$472,000) in administrative expenses.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$49,000 (2022: US$275,000) on qualifying
assets.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

ME- -BREKRRMHE (ERIRERKRI 57
EEpam R E R R REBET
R-BEEMRTEEEZANBEBEEENR
io

EEHEBEEARBRREER DA ER
AFREERBEERFERNRAER > HiE
AL St A BEERAEXNEIABL
HE WMER) -EEMIONREERL

oA HEMEERFRENEHELEN
MHEER AR RAMR

ME -BERRBONEDABEREE
HESAUEREMARERETDIEEAR

BREEE  HYWT

— ¥ 15-504
— BB R t%2s 10-204
— AE 5-84F
— WAERE 5-84F

BEZHNGREERAEAFHINER
SHMRTUBRKRAR WEA) -

HEERBERGSOATKREORES
X AEENREERZZIWHBRERR
W [B] FRER o

HEZBBHEBRMSMERKREE
fEELERMEE » WH AR & IR R AR
ATEMUR T — B8 -

FRIREEREREFREENELR
S AR R TR EBERAR ER2
TRRAFIFIE-

T ERISZ 20,507,000 T (ZE -
16,650,000%7T) ~467,000& 7T (Z &
T T :624,000%7T) K316,000% 7T (=
T " 1472,000%E7T) EDRIFTAHE
A HERDHB T U RITHES -

FERN AERCHREEREEESNLLEE
B A549,000%E 75 (ZZFE = =4 : 275,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings with carrying
amount of US$3,224,000, were pledged as collaterals for the
Group's bank borrowings of US$1,005,000. As at 31 December
2023, there is no property, plant and equipment pledged as
collaterals.

(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

RIEZ-F+ZHA=+—H REEA
3,224,000 T ETIEFERIFALRE
E$R1T155%1,005,000E THIIKIB G o 7
—EC=ZHE+ZB=+—H HEyE-
BB e 5B AR R A K R & o

() MRECEERRREINEE

HEEEREXRYIIUTRAR
RREER

2023 2022

Us$’000 Us$'000

F=E73T FE7

Land use rights T {E R 3,568 3,784

Building BF 1,023 1,359

Equipment =& 9 9

Total right-of-use assets FEREEERRE 4,600 5,152

Current lease liabilities mEHEaE 319 443

Non-current lease liabilities FEREBEEEE 2,744 3,035

Total lease liabilities HEaEEE 3,063 3,478
Movement of right-of-use assets for the year: FREAEEENES !

2023 2022

Us$’000 Us$'000

FE7T FET

At 1 January w—BA—8a 5,152 4,841

Additions for the year FRAE 29 583

Termination of contract during the year £ R 1E &4 = (49)

Lease modification HEEET = 481

Amortisation of right-of-use assets EREE EHH (553) (549)

Exchange differences bE R ERE (28) (155)

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 4,600 5,152
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NEEAWEREINEEE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following FEEWRmRHIIUATEHEAERFRHD
amounts relating to leases: £EE
2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T F=Ex
Amortisation charge of right-of-use ~ {EFREEEMN B
assets: ey -
Land use rights o st {5 AR A 410 401
Building BF 143 148
553 549
Interest expense (included in MEMZ GTAMBZEL)
finance cost) 98 104
Expense relating to short-term leases ERfEHRTE E BRI X
(included in cost of goods sold and GtABBEEmB A K
administrative expenses) TEREX) 87 75

(iii)

The total cash outflow for leases, including payment for
short-term leases, for the year ended 31 December 2023
was US$628,000 (2022: US$719,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and Vietnam.

Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have
each been granted rights to use two lands in the PRC by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in
2042 and 2060, respectively.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for (continued)

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam, has
obtained the rights to use certain lands in Vietnam by the
relevant authority for 43 to 50 years, which will expire in
2041.

Rental contract for building is made for a fixed period of
10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interest in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

(i) FEEMNEEEHRARBEEZS

Z2HE (@&
KA (EE) ROBRAE —ER
HERIREENKBAR BB
ERASPIEREEREES T L1
R EHA4L3ESOE BN _E
m—EEIHf

BFNEESHNTAE T ENEER
MR e

A EENER LGS L6
BRBARFER KR IF G - BEHZ
A % 5 A0 AE =) 3258 (M AR APREF
FHREEERIRIRERIRSN - 1EH
BEEEFNSREEERNIER.

HERHEEEAHAERERE
HRRAERAREEREHMERE-

HEELENERVBRREFE-
HEERSERENRIFRE.

REBESEREEEEFEMNAE
BRI ARBFEZA

HEMREABREFRRESHRERT
MRS - R ZEEZRN R (F&EE
MEE—RBILEBER - RIERXK
BAEEEER R BMER ABEA
FERLUS B IRIE R RECURR B
HRFEHEAESRERAEEER
ERUNEEMRES L AN

ES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for (continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 43 to 50 years. Amortisation of land use
rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of leases.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
5k B RiER [ &t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2022 KZZ2-Z-%-B—H
Cost D% 8,471 2,245 12,189 22,905
Accumulated amortisation Kot - (1,967) (12,151) (14,118)
Accumulated impairment R RE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount RERE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Year ended 31 December 2022 §E-Z--“f+=-B=+-H
LHEE
Opening net book amount EREFE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BHp% (M21) - (99) (38) (137)
Additions HE - 20 - 20
Exchange differences ERER 97 - - 97
Closing net book amount FRRETFE 1,881 199 - 2,080
At 31 December 2022 RZB_Z&+”-B=+—-H
Cost DN 8,568 2,265 12,189 23,022
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (2,066) (12,189) (14,255)
Accumulated impairment REtAfE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount IREFE 1,881 199 - 2,080
Year ended 31 December 2023 §E-_Z-=F+-B=+-H
LHEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 1,881 199 - 2,080
Amortisation charge (Note 21) Mm% (M521) - (71) - (1)
Transfer iz - 179 - 179
Impairment loss (Note 20) RERSE (M3E20) (680) - - (680)
Exchange differences ERER 19 - - 19
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 1,220 307 - 1,527
At 31 December 2023 RZ2Z=%+ZRA=+—H
Cost (DN 8,587 2,444 12,189 23,220
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (2,137) (12,189) (14,326)
Accumulated impairment REtRfE (7,367) - - (7,367)
Net book amount IREFE 1,220 307 - 1,527
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BRI AITEBS -
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Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EEREN

HAEDREEESHBIEELAEERN

operating segment. IREE(o
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
[ Bk Rk S
TERAER MRS st
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEr FEx TET
At 31 December 2023 NI =4%
+-B=+—H 490 730 1,220
At 31 December 2022 ==
+—-—B=+—H 1,151 730 1,881

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on VIU calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared by
management and approved by the Board of Directors covering
a five years period. Cash flows beyond the five years period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below
if applicable. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the MSG related business in which the
CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows.

EERBREBEFERIREEM (MHRIGR
TEA) NEREE (RAEE) 22
FEAHERS (T2 FEREERE])
ME RS EEE AU EI £ 58 - BREUIR
TEUNJKROEEZREREEHNE
BE ZEEERENEERRRRL
EFEHAEZIFHVREESHZE
MARERERAET BHAIFHRZR
EREBERAUTA2IZAFIEREXER
(WER) - BEREFESENRNRTE
IFfEEZ R IFHEMEBNRET9E
‘X

BUsEPEREEARNIREEUR
BZEREEZEZERRW T

The PRC
TP
2023 2022

—F== —FC

—_— R = ——

Sales per annum (US$'000)

Growth rate in sales HEEREX

Gross margin EVIES

Other operating costs per annum SEHMEERA®
(US$'000) (F%7m)

Long term growth rate REAGRE

FEE (A0

Discount rate (pre-tax)

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

BEHERE (FE7)

15,393 - 19,067
5% - 18%
14.6% - 16.3%

14,465-16,780
3% - 8%
16.5% - 17.1%

1,883 - 2,206 1,627 - 1,887
2% 3%
15.3% 16.2%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Impairment tests for goodwill: (continued)

Sales per annum and growth rate in sales are estimated with
reference to the past performance of the CGU, management'’s
expectations of market development, current industry trends
and long term inflation forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use
calculation is lower than its carrying value and therefore a
further provision for impairment of goodwill of US$680,000
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis over the
PRC MSG related business. A decrease in annual sales volume
growth rate by 5.3%, a decrease in annual sales price growth
rate by 0.3%, a decrease in gross margin by 0.5%, an increase
in annual operating costs by 2.7%, a decrease in long term
growth rate by 2.1% or an increase in discount rate by 1.3%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.

HERENR (@

SENEERHENREDCSEHE
R B 2BERR EEEHTHYE
BN R TRERRRBERENE
CEETE

EEEDNRBBETREREHTHERE
ZHRPEEREEN R -FTAFRET R
L A0 f2 BRAR R AR & 3 BF 2 45 E LR o

Hth&EM AT BER & EMREER
oM ABEHESNIHEBRELH -E
BEEERRBEBRBEARSTRE I
B EFFH AR BE R & RE
IR E LA A LA - EHUIREERY
TSNS DERARNTIEERE -

MPEKEEEESNEEMS  BER
BEAEARAENTKRESEBHE
RHE W8EE_E_=4+-A=+—
BEEEE—PHBELRERIESE
680,000% 7T °

EEECHTEKBEERERETH
BRESM EHEBEEREES 3%
FHEERERTY®0 3%  EFERTE
0.5% FEEMEER2.7% EHEE
ETH2NI%HINIRIFIER13% FAEE
B REHBEIL RILEY B ENGRE
EHE B HURE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Impairment tests for goodwill: (continued)

Accounting policy regarding intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks and license

Separately acquired trademarks and the license,
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks and license over their
estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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B #5 ¥R AR MY 51

SUBSIDIARIES

9

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2023:

HBAR
THBR T

=#+ZHA=+—H2
FTEMBATBE

Proportion of

Proportion of ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation share capital the Group interest
iR R
SEMRERIL R B sEAREZ REZ
EaY: MRkt BERER TEEBREEHY BE1T/BRBRAFHE EERLA EERLH
Directly held:
ERFE
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
(“BVI") US$1 each
EBRELEHS AEEREER 100 S REE1ETH
(RERREE) LER
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
HBRULEHS AEBREER 100k EREEIZTH
BER
Indiirectly held:
BEREE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
H N3 EMMBREER 61,109,000% 7T &3BMK
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
H N3 EMMBREER 20,177,000 T &8
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of 171,574,967 99.9% 0.1%
Corporation Limited fermentation-based food additives Ordinary shares of
and biochemical products and US$1 each
cassava starch-based industrial
products including MSG, GA,
modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
foge) EHRRERBEEH RN 171,574,967 S REE

EECERRAZRNIEE
o BERE ARR EHR
0 BE R TR R HO

1ZTHEER
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RE BRI

9 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9 MEBATR (&
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at THAR_ZE_=F+"B=+—HB2
31 December 2023: (continued) FTEWMBRBEBFE | (@)

Proportion of
Proportion of ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation share capital the Group interest
R
SEMELIL A B FEAFEZ REZ
278 URERREEN  TEEBREENE BET/MRRANE  EERHA  EERLS
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, US$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in Registered capital
the PRC
LER/EEBRAR FEEREERE  ATESRKRFEEKRE RN EK  9,800,000% T
B R EMER Bx
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in Registered capital
the PRC
EfGARRERAR FE AREART AETESEREERE RN EK  20,270,000% T
B R EMER Bx
Xiamen Darong Import & PRC, limited liability Sale of starch and other products in -~ US$254,000 100% -
Export Trade Co., Ltd. company the PRC Registered capital
BRABELOEZERAF FEBREAAE ATEHEBRMREMESR 254,000& T MER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food Registered capital of Riels 100% -
Co., Ltd. additives and biochemical 2,640,000,000

products and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Cambodia
and for export

RIEE RREFREEHEQAME & FMEA2,640,000,000
CERRABRNIEERNHE I
pduc] !

162 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRE (#288) BIRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Movement of the investment in an associate is as follo

ws: R—EBEARZREZEHUT !

2023 2022
Us$’000 US$'000
FET TE7T
As at 1 January w—A—H 4,174 4,702
Allotment of new shares Bic 28 ¥ A% 1,680 -
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FE(L— R E AR RRE
518 (841) (528)
As at 31 December W+ZA=+—H 5,013 4,174
Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December WZEZ=ZFRZIEZ-_F+H
2023 and 2022: =t+—H R—EEEARZKRELEEN
T
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
%18 AR Bl 32 B R ERITRAEE FEEE% HERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 26,627,559 30 Equity
Holdings Limited shares (2022:
21,027,559 shares) of
US$1 each
EMBERERBRAE HEEHE 26,627,5590% e
(ZZZZfF:
21,027,5598%) E %
EE1ETZRHG
The associate is principally engaged in real estate development ZHMERTAFENUBERERMEERE
in Vietnam.
Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and EMERERBERATAMAAT BH
there is no quoted market price available for its shares. B 7 I AT B R
No capital commitment in relation to the Group’s investment in REEBRNRZBERDZRERIRE
the associate (2022: US$112,000). RIERIEAREE (ZE -4 112,000
ET) o
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Reconciliation of summarised financial information MHEENBEHK
2023 2022
—EZ= -
us$’'000 Us$'000
FET FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—RA—BZEERE 13,913 15,674
Allotment of new shares during the year REERER 5,600 -
Loss for the year REERIE (2,802) (1,761)
Net assets as at 31 December ®B+ZA=+—H2
BEFE 16,711 13,913
Interest in an associate (30%) RIS AR Z &= (30%) 5,013 4,174
2023 2022
uss$‘000 Us$'000
F=T FE=T
Financial assets at amortised cost HBHER A EZ
MEEE
— Trade receivables — BB ZER® 33,755 33,990
— Other receivables —H W IE 503 1,039
— Amounts due from related parties —FEWEREALTRIE 772 126
— Short-term bank deposit —ERRITER 19,693 -
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERIREEEY 29,676 47,810
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFSAEEN
profit or loss MBEEE
— Structured bank deposits —EBMEIRITTEMR 990 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HREBHERAFEZ
M aE
— Trade payables —EE RN 18,391 27,591
— Other payables and accruals —HthEAMIER
FEEt &R 7,632 8,878
— Amounts due to related parties —FENARREALRIEA 596 149
— Bank borrowings —iR{TBE 43,654 59,621

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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2023 2022
—EZ= -

Us$’000 Us$'000
FET TE7T
Consumables HFEM 7,520 7,571
Raw materials RF 72,543 73,762
Work in progress ERG 4,980 6,181
Finished goods S A% G 53,330 53,065
138,373 140,579

Less: Provision for impairment losses on B FERERERE
inventories (693) (52)
137,680 140,527

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated at cost,
using the weighted average method.

Notes:

(i) The cost of inventories of US$278,617,000 (2022:
US$355,425,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

(i) The provision for impairment of inventories included in cost of
sales amounted to US$641,000 (2022: reversal of impairment of
US$12,000).

FEURAEAEFFEMENRESE
ABR B AR M T A E - R M
EREEASERME BERAL Hit
EEMANBEMEEER UEBERE

B AEEBREFNEER TR G
AR E R R E A ETE -

HEMFAFES  LEAMETITER
AR AT AR ©

PE

(i) FEMA278,617,000& 7T (Z2 -
£ 1355,425,000570) Bt ASHER A o

iy, BERNHENFTZEFEREEED

641,000 (ZE2 4% ZERHER
[E17512,000%7T) ©
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2023 2022
—EZ= —EC
US$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7x FEx
Trade receivables from third parties EWRE=FEZEM 34,105 34,379
Less: loss allowance A ESIEERE (350) (389)
Trade receivables - net FEUE Z AR — 5 %E 33,755 33,990
Prepayments FEfIFRIE 10,857 18,662
VAT recoverable A Y B8 ER 251 338
Other receivables HhpEW g 369 911
Amount due from an associate UL — R B A B R IE 14 8
Loan to an associate (Note (c)) BT —EHE AT ZER
(B EE(0) 120 120
45,366 54,029
Less: non-current portion B FERNERER
— Prepayments for plant and equipment —BEKRZEEMLRIE (1,527) (1,301)
Current portion BVHEAER 7 43,839 52,728
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on EKREZRARZEERANFEEIMIRE
delivery to 30 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period 30K -AEBRTHETERRERER
to certain customers, subject to the satisfactory results of credit B MEZBEREEFGHZARER-
assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based on FEWE BERFIRE R HEAZ IRESNT ¢
invoice date is as follows:
2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
0 - 30 days 0F 30K 31,949 24,014
31 - 90 days 31E90K 793 9,069
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 706 604
181 - 365 days 181&E365K 326 172
Over 365 days 365Kk k£ 331 520
34,105 34,379
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The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are

FEWE 5 IR EL M FE WA IR 2 BRE 1B

denominated in the following currencies: BTHEEEE !
2023 2022
—_E"= g

US$'000 Us$'000
FET FE
Vietnam Dong HrEE 17,960 26,737
us$ E7T 20,228 18,992
Renminbi AR 7,116 8,220
Others Hith 62 80
45,366 54,029

(a) Classification as trade receivables (a) DEAEWREZRN

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlement
within 30 days and therefore all classified as current.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional, unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details
about the Group's impairment policies and the calculation
of the loss allowance are provided in note 3.1(b)(ii).

BUEZEMBEBEEZPUE
EERIFMEHNRBMELRE
BIRIE - R B ZERRBEER30XK
REE ALE2B2EH R~
WEZERREEFRERESEET
MpHER RIFHBESERRER
Do RABRAFTEES -SEEFE
BWEZEREETWIMENRER
B FItRBERAERMNEELE
AT EBREKE SRR - ARA
ERBRERRRGREEBNAES
ER BRI S (b)) o
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(b) Impairment and risk exposure (b) RERERE®KO
The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December RIZE__FKR-Z-=%+2"A4
2022 and 2023 are the carrying amounts of trade and —t+—HERZRAEERREA L
other receivables mentioned above. The Group does not MEWE SRR REMERRIEZ
hold any collateral as security. REE AERLESFEEIER
REIER o
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to EEEREBMBEREENEO
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime REEH A ERMAEEBEE 5
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. FrBERIKE ZRMIKAZATERES
1EHEE o
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 RIEZ=F+"B=+—HZE
December 2023 reconciles to the opening loss allowance WEBZRMZFRGERBERAEY
as follows: BRBEHZHIRNOT
2023 2022
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7T FEx
Opening loss allowance R—A—HZEYEE
as at 1 January B’HE 389 323
(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance REARGSWEERTE
recognised in consolidated income s 2 BRI A O
statement during the year 1N (39) 66
Closing loss allowance W+ZRA=+—H2
as at 31 December FREEBE 350 389
The provision for credit loss of receivables has been MEWRIBEEEBEBEFHNEED
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated SFAGREWEAERNITEEZ R R
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance BERNRNEE—RNREREE
account are generally written off when there is no Y [B] 8 % 3R & IRr i 2 o
expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do FEWE ZRFREMEBRRERZ
not contain impaired assets. HaniEp i FraEF e lEsE-
(c) Loan to an associate (00 #HF—HMEQATNZER

As at 31 December 2023, the loan to an associate of
US$120,000 (2022: US$120,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4.5% (2022: 4.5%), per annum,
denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 May 2024.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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2023 2022

—_E"= g
us$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7 FE
Structured bank deposits (note (a)) EREIRITER (MEEGa)) 990 -
Short-term bank deposits (note (b)) SHRIR1TERR (M3 5E(b)) 19,693 -
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFBERS 29,676 47,810
50,359 47,810

As at 31 December 2023, cash at bank of US$29,560,000
(2022: US$47,676,000) and bank deposits of US$20,683,000
(2022: US$Nil) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts
of US$4,426,000 (2022: US$2,413,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$43,455,000 (2022: US$41,063,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments, respectively.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, structured bank
deposits and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

W_E_=F+"_B=+—H" 417
I8$£29,560,000E T (ZE - " F :
47,676,000% 7t) K iR{TERR20,683,000
ER(CEZ-5 T3 @lREEER
7

PEH A EIRITIRE 2B $4,426,000%E 7T
(ZEBZ 4 :2,413,000%E 7T) KE Hi
HIRTTIRE 2B $43,455,000E T (8
T4 1 41,063,000E7) B RETH
B Bz ¥ R T O 91 B B 6 4 A o

FEBZRERFEEEY EBERT
ERERERRITERBUTERSE

2023 2022

—EC=HF —EC
US$°000 US$'000
F=ET FET
Vietnam Dong HEE 27,860 15,500
Us$ x5 16,857 27,523
Renminbi AR 4,438 2,414
Hong Kong dollar BT 78 100
New Taiwan dollar mak 412 1,847
Others Hith 714 426
50,359 47,810
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RE BRI

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14 HERHEELEEY - EBHEHRITER
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK BRIEHASRITEN (48)
DEPOSITS (continued)
Notes: F5E -
(a) Structured bank deposits (a) HEBURITER

As at 31 December 2023, the structured bank deposits
amounting to US$990,000 represented wealth management
products issued by a reputable bank in PRC with variable interest
and repayable on demand. Changes in fair value of these
investments were recognised in “other (losses)/gains — net” in
the consolidated income statement. The effective interest rate of
structured bank deposit was 2.00% as at 31 December 2023.

(b)  The effective interest rate of short-term bank deposit was 6.77% (b)
as at 31 December 2023.

RIBE-=ZF&+-"HB=+—H &Ek
$RITTF 990,000 T AT E—RMN%Z
RITHITHEBEMESR BEMERESE
B EEEREREE ZEFRENA
TEEHN GG RERERS THih (85
18) PR cEBMERTERR
TEC=F+ZB=+—HAMBEEMNE
#2.00% °

CHIR TN S =+ _-A
=+ —HBEBBRFEA6.77% -

15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 K&

Authorised ordinary shares

EELER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
EEET e E FEr
At 1 January 2022, RZE__&—F—AK
31 December 2022, —E-_#+”"HA=+—8"
1 January 2023 and “E2=f—HF—HkK
31 December 2023 ZEZ=H+ZA=+—H 0.01  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
BETRBELER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares UsS$’000
HEET e B FE=r
At 1 January 2022, R-_E-_—_F—BF—HFK
31 December 2022, —E-—#+-A=+-—§8-
1 January 2023 and —E—— g
31 December 2023 :V:ZE }é ﬁ&
“E_=f+ZA=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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RE B HRRMEE

16 RESERVES 16 (#fE

Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
RiPEE ERHE AHEE EEHE  FERY At

(@) (&)
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
TER TER TR TER TER TER

At 1 January 2022 RZE-__&#—-HF—H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
Comprehensive loss 2EGHE
Loss for the year FEEBE - - - - (4,386) (4,386)
Other comprehensive loss HittZ2mEAESE
Currency translation differences ERZE%E - (3,449) - - - (3,449)
Total comprehensive loss EEEELE - (3,449) - - (4,386) (7,835)
Total transactions with HEBEAZERZE

owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) ENRE (fi524) - - - - (2,466) (2,466)
Reallocation of statutory reserve BN E AT th - - - 27 (27) -
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE

+ZB=+—-H 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 276,260

At 1 January 2023 RZE-=&—-F—H 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 276,260
Comprehensive income 2EHRA
Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - 6,986 6,986
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EEE
Currency translation differences ERZE% - (429) - - - (429)
Total comprehensive ZEBA (8518) 2%

income/(loss) - (429) - - 6,986 6,557
Total transactions with BEFEAZHERSE

owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BARE (HE24) - - - - (3,487) (3,487)
At 31 December 2023 RZI2Z=%

+ZB=+—-H 47,358 6,905 79,994 901 144,172 279,330
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Notes: Pt -
(a) Merger reserve
(a) BB
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEBENEHERBIEREN _S2ZHF
between the nominal value of the share capital and share +ZBZ+AHERMNEBMEAMKE
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group WEBASMNKEAEERKRMDRERAA
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal BAMETREMETZRAEBENE
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange o
therefor.
(b)  Statutory reserve (b) EEHE
The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the FEABERIATZEMZI0%EEE
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such RBE BEABTERRTEMES
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The Z50% c AR E  EE AR E
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the AFEAUIEHE RS BEEIIGMA TG
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase MEX FIRABHABESEBEHIFTNA
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is BRMEERRID25%
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.
2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Current ENHA
Trade payables FE{T B 5 BRFX 18,391 27,591
Accruals FEsTE R 8,077 7,781
Payable of purchase of property, plantand EBEBEYE -BEK
equipment and construction costs BEURIBELARIE 326 814
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) aHAE (MEaQ) 4,579 4,339
Other payables HhpEdzhE 5,283 7,206
Total trade payables, accruals and FET B ZERFR - Bt E B
other payables R EMAE I FRIB4a%8 36,656 47,731
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RE B HRRMEE

17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17 BIESERMR B ERAREMEM
PAYABLES (continued) TRIE (48)
Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 EHEZRAAEIRR BERERE
days of recognition. 30HRXZfTe
At 31 December 2023, the ageing of trade payables based on RIEZ=F+ZHA=+—H ELES
invoice date is as follows: IR ZEHIAZIREROT ¢
2023 2022
us$‘000 Us$'000
FE7T FE7
0 - 30 days 0F 30K 17,734 25,334
31 - 90 days 31E90K 657 2,257
18,391 27,591
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables, accruals AEBMZENEZRNR ETERREM
and other payables are denominated in the following ERIBEZ REER T EEE
currencies:
2023 2022
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FET FE
Vietnam Dong HEE 23,026 23,195
us$ E7T 5,379 16,031
Renminbi AR 6,793 8,500
Others Hith 1,458 5
36,656 47,731
Notes: FEE -
(a) Contract liabilities (a) B&HEaR’
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or payments EHNEBEIERRRINFERZERE
received in advance for sales of goods not yet delivered to EzRWREHIRBERM KaRE R
customers. Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered to RIGFEFRRER
customers.
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RE BRI

18 BANK BORROWINGS

18 SRITIBE

2023 2022
—EZ= =S
US$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7x FEx
Non-current JEBNHA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RBPRITEE
— secured —HiRH 3,431 8,081
— Long-term bank borrowings —RHARITHEE
— unsecured —ER IR - 566
Less: current portion of long-term bank A REARITEEZ
borrowings HIEEES) (1,439) (5,216)
1,992 3,431
Current BNHA
— Short-term bank borrowings —fSHIRITEE
- secured — B 38,271 40,254
— Short-term bank borrowings —iRHARITEE
— unsecured —EIRIF 1,952 10,720
— Current portion of long-term bank —RBRITEEZ
borrowings — secured BNERER > — B 1K 4R 1,439 3,321
— Current portion of long-term bank —RBIRITEEZ
borrowings — unsecured BDHERER 73 — MK 4R - 1,895
41,662 56,190
Total bank borrowings IRITEEREE 43,654 59,621
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At 31 December 2023, the Group's bank borrowings were
repayable as follows:

RIE_=ZF+"_RA=+—H &*x&EBZ
IRITEREBENUTHRREE

2023 2022

—_E"= =S
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FE=7
Within 1 year —FR 41,662 56,190
Between 1 and 2 years —FEEME 1,328 1,440
Between 2 and 5 years MEERSFE 664 1,991
43,654 59,621

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate

RER SRR o A S S P O R R

changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the BREHNEMITEBBAT :
reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
ZEZ=F =S

Us$'000 Us$'000
F=ET FET
Within 6 months 6EA R 40,998 50,992
Between 7 and 12 months 7E12@H 664 5,199
Between 1 and 5 years 1E54%F 1,992 3,430
43,654 59,621

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's

RESHR cEBEEZEREN XN

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: T

2023 2022

ZEZ=F —EFC
us$ ETT 5.2% 3.7%
New Taiwan dollar ma 2.4% 1.8%
Renminbi AR Not applicable 3.6%
RER

Vietnamese dong HmE 3.3% Not applicable

R
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate

FEBRBEZRAEEAEATERE I

their fair values and are denominated in the following BUTEKHE
currencies:
2023 2022
—EFET= ="
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7 FxEx
uss ETT 9,997 56,578
New Taiwan dollar matk 1,952 1,303
Renminbi AR#E - 1,740
Vietnamese Dong HEE 31,705 -
43,654 59,621
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: AEBMEUTKRZEABERE .
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E_C
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7T FE7x
Floating rate: EE
— Expiring within one year —-R—FERFEH 104,472 101,342
— Expiring beyond one year —-R—F%BIEH 5,568 43,950
Fixed rate: TR
- Expiring within one year —R—FEREE 30,596 574
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FB = -
140,636 145,866

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$184,290,000 (2022:
US$205,487,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2023 amounted to US$140,636,000 (2022: US$145,866,000),
among them, US$94,620,000 (2022: US$97,147,000) of the
unutilised bank facilities were secured by corporate guarantees

issued by the Company.

The Group was complied with the financial covenants of its
bank loans during both period presented, see note 3.2 for

details.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

RIE_=F+"RA=+—H &8
EHERRITMEAH47184,290,000%
T (ZEZ 4 205,487,000 7T) &
BRTEE - BIMEREM—MRIBIT
ME-RZEBE_=FF+A=+—H Xk
EFE$E7/4140,636,000€ T (Z2 -
£ 1 145,866,000%7) > Hoh o REAIR
TREE 94,620,000k T (ZE - & :
97,147,000%&7T) AU BAAATEHEZA
B R IEIRIF o
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BB HRE FRMFE3.20



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The offset amounts
are as follows:

BIEFRSRDRBEAEEIUTEREE
FRERRERNEIEREUMBLRZ
BEETHE-

ERAERNAITHENBAPRNEEES
BEIEH > BIREREBELERT RE—RE
HERARS > IR IEE NI E ER AR ER
HHH - EEIEHATE A AT R I K i
RPREEEENRAREREERER
aEF PREEEEREGELRIE
Ho RIS RRLT ¢

2023 2022
—EZ= =

Us$’000 Us$'000

F= FET

Deferred income tax liabilities IREFTEREaR 2,803 3,215
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant RIFIKIHR T IRHIE

to set off provisions ERIBEEE (2,653) (2,638)

150 577

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

FFEEBREFRSREERER (R RIE
HAEARBRE ZRENER) NEHU
T

BIEFRSRER

Accelerated tax depreciation

IR IEITE
2023 2022
—E=HF =St
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FE=7
At 1 January w—RB—H 3,215 3,398
Credited to consolidated income statement st A4LGEWEHR (412) (183)
At 31 December W+ZB=+—H 2,803 3,215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred income tax assets

RIEFRSMEE

Other temporary differences

Hth g =58
2023 2022
—EFE°= -
us$’'000 Us$'000
FE7 FE1
At 1 January w—HA—H (2,638) (1,733)
Credited to consolidated income statement st A& ER (15) (905)
At 31 December B+-ZB=+—H (2,653) (2,638)
Notes: P5E -

(@)

(i)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon the
distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred income
tax liabilities of US$862,000 (2022: US$940,000) have not been
recognised in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries and it is
probable that these temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. The unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries
are intended to reinvest to expand PRC markets.

There is no unrecognised deferred income tax assets for tax loss
for the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(i)

REBEFECEMRSRE XEEETH
EfEARB ST N\E—B—HEE
EREMN B IRFIIEREENE
FI10%NMEGMTENIR - AR AE
EZEHIZERENB AR ZKREBRK
BARERZFENEBRT R ETEG
ZEFEBEAKAIRER A Bk #E[D
W E S YR ERRIEERER
£ 1&862,0003 75 (Z &/ Z— — 4 : 940,000
E5) cHENRBABREHNERNE
EBRREUIRERTEANS

RZE_=Z=FK_ZZ__F+ZA
=+—H FAEESEARRBEEZ

REEDIBIEFRBIREE

2023 2022

Us$’000 Us$'000

FE7T FET

Net exchange loss ERE 1R R (263) (489)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEREEZ

equipment K518 (98) (36)

Sales of scrap materials 5 L8 & 389 330

Government grant B B 9 114
Fair value gains on structural bank deposits #4184 RITERZAFE

Wi 4 52

Impairment of goodwill EERE (680) -

Others Hth 517 248

(122) 219

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF



Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEM A HE R D HBX RITHHAXF

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BEZEZSHUOT
2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7
Changes in inventories and consumables FEREREERES
used (Note 12) (MFsE12) 278,617 355,425
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)  E B E#H (H:E8) 71 137
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {FRAEEE#HHE (5E7) 553 549
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B & B
— Audit services —ZH AR 345 345
— Non-audit services —IE L RS 5 4
Depreciation on property, plant and ME- -BERZEITE
equipment (Note 6) (MFsE6) 21,290 17,746
Written off of property, plant and WD EE -~ R E R 5% 8
equipment (Note 6) GEE)) 277 895
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of EFEEREZEE (D)
inventories (Note 12) (MtzE12) 641 (12)
Expense relating to short-term lease RIS ERRMNRES
(Note 7) (M$5E7) 87 75
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EERHM Mz (MizE26) 40,844 39,236
(Reversal of)/provision for loss allowance of FEUWE FERFEIEEE
trade receivables (Note 13) () #E (Misx13) (39) 66
Loss on lease modification (Note 32(b)) MEETTZEK (fiEE32(0)) - 1
Technical support fee Rz & 2,184 2,139
Travelling expenses il 1,629 1,562
Transportation expenses Ri@pAE 6,645 12,345
Advertising expenses EEH% 1,718 2,071
Repair and maintenance expenses HENGFRERS 10,751 13,059
Other expenses HiRAx 7,452 8,699
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $HER s« $HE R D84
expenses and administrative expenses X RITE 4858 373,070 454,342
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2023 2022
—EZ= s

Us$’000 Us$'000

F= FET

Bank interest income RITH B ULA 1,084 393

Interest income from an associate KE—EHERTZ

F B U A 5 5

Finance income AU A 1,089 398

Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEFERE (2,831) (1,122)

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaGMNEMX (98) (104)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying B eEBEREEEXRL

assets HIE 49 275

Finance costs BN (2,880) (951)

Finance costs — net T H— 3% (1,791) (553)

B Z MIEE R G5 ERR S A
EEEEMTERARZRBITREAE

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

REFEWRmRANBFZAASREERS

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

2023 2022
—EZ= s

Us$’000 Us$'000

F= FE=T

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEMER 3,782 1,271
(Over)/under provision of income tax in BEEEMRSKR (BEE

previous years BE BERR (9) 4

Total current tax BNEATR TR AR %8 3,773 1,275

Deferred income tax IRIEFR1SR (427) (1,088)

3,346 187

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AEBRASRAER (B8 B9F
FREWERATEEZEZENE QR
ERANERREMSENERRRT

The income tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major

subsidiary of the Group, as follows: B &AM
2023 2022
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FE7
Profit/(loss) before income tax MREF1SMAEF, (E518) 10,347 (4,197)
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% B15% 2 MEAHEZRIE

(2022: 15%) (ZEZZF 1 15%) 1,552 (630)

Tax effects of different tax rates TEMEZMBLE 195 114
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ENGIE Y d 5 1,454 1,158
Income not subject to tax BHEFRIA (19) (459)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETRE 15 4
Unrecognised tax losses REESBIRFEEIE 149 -
Income tax expenses FrigiRpaz 3,346 187

Pillar Two legislation was enacted in Vietnam, the jurisdiction
in which one of the Group's subsidiaries incorporated, and
will come into effect from 1 January 2024. As the Group's
total revenue is less than EUR 750million for the year ended
31 December 2023 and all entities within the Group have an
effective tax rate that exceeds 15%, the Group has no related
current or deferred tax exposure under OECD Pillar Two model
rules.

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s principal
operations in Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax
rate offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary’s investment license. For non-principal
operation in Vietnam, the applicable EIT rate for the
Group is 20%.

THIUZEREE ERRBATZ
— MBI FRERAE) B W7
TEMFE—HA—BiEER -HREER
BE_Z_=F+"A=t+—HLEE
B ELEERR 750 BB T BAER
NEFEERNERRENBEIS% R
It RIROECDE HH Z/REE R A > REE
3t #% AB B BN HA SR SE AR IE /BB ©

EEPTIS ML M BB |REEE & &
B> BRPAISRNBARRAFTHRD
WX BB FHARE-

() ®&mE
BB ARBIREFFEIEMREIA
FEERTHRENEIEEBNERL
EFMBRER1S% AREREAH
MBAFMGETHESRE -FidE
MIETEXEBMS  ~EENER
EEFRSMER20% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, as the PRC
subsidiaries had adjusted losses for the year, no income
tax expenses was provided.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/ Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 20%.

An interim dividend of US$0.229 US cents per share amounting
to US$3,487,000 that relates to the year ended 31 December
2023 was declared on 22 August 2023 and was paid on 5
October 2023.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 of 0.2298 US cents per share, amounting to a final
dividend of US$3,499,000, is to be proposed for approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

(i) E
AEBEPBENERNBERLEFRR
BREH25%-

BHE_Z”-=_%+ZH=+—H
EEE HRHPERBATRERN
HERIE R EHIERERE
%o

(i) #oNRBERIER
HRAEBRAEEILEETHM
W BBRREERNHES G
FEERR R A > ] Ik b 48 1 H 7 A0 3
BB  RIHRFISIRERE -

(ivy 8%
FERESENEBNEREEMR
BMER20%

BEM8E-_T-=Z=F#+=ZBA=+—H
IEFESRKR0.229%11& % %3,487,000
ExZzHHEREER T Z=EN\A
“+ZHERERR_ZE_=Z%+8AEH
TRAT o

BHRREEREEEAS LIE2 M HHs
MBE-S-=#+-A=+—AL%=
IR B 5 S 80.2298 21l » FREAKR
B EIE3,499,000E T R LA UK
$R2% 01 4R R DR PR AT IR B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Basic (a)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

=%

SREXRFN, (BB BEQEE
BABEER (BB BRUERE
HITEBERNMETIIHAE

2023 2022
—EZ=F —E_C

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of A TR AELEFR]

the Company (US$'000) (5518 (F=71) 6,986 (4,386)
Weighted average number of EETEERNME

ordinary shares in issue THE (TR

(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARA, (H8)

(US cents per share) (BRI =) 0.46 (0.29)

(b) Diluted (b) ##58

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings/(loss)
per share as there are no dilutive instruments for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BE_ZE_-_FEKRZITE°F+T
B=+—HBLEEE BRLESE
TE HERBERINESRKREX

BH (B518) R -
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E_C
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=7x FEx
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE R R ER 30,726 30,195
Bonus TE4T 3,421 2,807
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk E 7
—ERRMARET R 3,981 3,732
Other employee benefits HigEw@7 2,716 2,502
40,844 39,236
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited BHE_Z_=ZF+-"HA=+—HLILHF
contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its B > 25 [ 4 &) B 4ROR WK RS (R AR DURL D
contributions for the current year (2022: Nil). EENER(CEZZF .8 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly

RBUEFHEREE *EFERBENZ
EENEFE+__A=+—HIAUFEAN
BEEESRHEERNBRAESE -ZF
BHEUEER _ZETNE+A=+—
BZRBEFHRRERS B NEAR

salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. MM FEHSBHEL-

2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FE
As at 1 January ®w—B—H 1,526 1,505
Current service cost BNERRR R 2 67 193
Payments IR (109) (172)
As at 31 December w+-ZB=+—H 1,484 1,526

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrERNETERERRNOT !
2023 2022
Discount rate TIRE 9% 9%
Salary growth rate HERREX 4.5% - 6.9% 6.0% — 7.0%
Expected years of service remaining TEEARIER AR TS IR 12 - 14 yearsf 13 - 15 yearstf

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

REH_ZETNF-A—BEERZE
EAHERRE FEBRAAHERES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E MBI EE

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EFENREDS (FALATEG (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) E383(F AT (KBEESEH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE =EH) HH ($622GE) RE#H L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HIRARE Z W E)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERESRITHAEZMNE
The remuneration of every director and the chief BEERSRITBRAEZFHMNET
executive is set out below: mr
For the year ended 31 December 2023: gE—_T-=F+Z“HA=+—HL
R
Other emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of
director’s other
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
Allowances and contribution the Company
Salary Discretionary  benefitsin kind  to a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
ARESH
BRARFH
HHBARES
BER FRENEDERS
bk ERRRNER BHEHHE EBEIMARKZ
Name of Director Sy g (Hizka) BT (Hizkb) FRIEMR HitiE Eh
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RE TET TEn TER RE T RE RE
Executive Director iEs
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung REEEE 1 343 135 17 - - 496
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 134 (o) - 381 144 17 - - 542
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRIEE - 218 9% 17 - - 330
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou L - 181 95 17 - - 293
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHELE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BERERE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEZR
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEERE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BEREE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total et 10 1123 469 180 - - 1,782
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E R R M SE

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EEENRED (FRARMGG (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) F3831F% AR WEEHH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HEE) R0 (F622GE) REH L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAREZHE) (48)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EEERERITHAEZNE (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE_Z_—_F#+”-_B=+—HL
FE
Other emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of

director’s other
services in
connection with
the management

Allowances Employer's of the affairs of
and benefits contribution the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind to a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
BHESH
ERARTY
HWBARES
BEm  FRENEMERS
it RERENER BicEFHE BEXGRELZ
Name of Director B3ty bk (HfzEa) KRBT (Hizkb) FfER Ht & R
US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000
TEn TEn TEn T TEn RE T£n
Executive Director HiEs
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEERE 1 343 - 17 - - 361
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note )~ 1BH8RE 4 (Hf5Ec) 1 425 18 17 - - 461
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 219 - 17 - - 236
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou b - 181 - 17 - - 198
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHELE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung EREAE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive  BIFHITES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BB 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total @t 11 1,168 18 180 - - 1377
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E MBI EE

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
(continued)

EFENREDR (FRQBRGM (B

622%F) F3831% A8 (KEEEF
mEH) AP (35622GE) REE L
HRARE ZIKE) (B)

(A)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

EERERITHRAEZME (B)

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
EENEAERZRE ARESNERFREH
(FRATAAREMBARZES) HIB AR EHFR M
SERRERZAME HitRBEEXFRRKZ At SBE a5t @t
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECZHE ZEC ZEZZF ZECCE —EI=F 5
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER TEx FTEn FEn FER TER
190 191 1,592 1,186 1,782 1,377

Notes:

(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind represents the directors’
meeting attendance allowance.

(9] Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang is also the CEO of the Company and
no separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.

B E -

(a)

(b)

XNF—REENHSBESM
ZATRMEEBERRQTFHEK
BArREHARMNHEMREME
AT RAEWAIEN £ -

R REYEANIEEENERZE
ffio

PR AEREFIQABITHAE

o WERT RSB FHINET
DFEKE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2022: same).

Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2022: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2022: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2022: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2022: same).

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

(B)

(@)

(D)

(E)

(F)

EERAKEF
BEZ_Z=F+"H=+—HLt
FE UTEAZEERREETELR
BAREMBATNEFFIIRENR
B HHEMBRAERN (ZTEZ
HEE) ©

EEZRIEER
BE_ZE-_=-_"F+Z“HB=+—HL
FE UWEAEFELMLLEEN (Z
T _F MR e

MREEERFMRE=FREN
K&

BEZZ=F+"H=+—HLt
EEC-UEMREEEREMASE
ZHRERB(CEZ_F BR)

BRAUES - SREESEHNZE
ANEBRZEEENEMEERS
SHEANER EERREMRS
B &k

BE_Z_=-"F+"HA=+—HL
FE UENEE STZEEFE
HIREANEREZEEETNARE
ERATSTEAFHNER EER
REMRZEG (T _F : #HFR) °

EENRS RHABHTINEKX
g
PRIMGEE32FAI B E N RAFER
RAFEERNTAMER > Q5 I E
SIVEAEREBERMAARE
EEENHEEEERETNEM
BARZ ZHHIEHN (T2
F R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E MBI EE

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2022: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2022: one) individual during the year is as

EFEREMRED (FRAEEMN (B
622%F) F3831% A8 (KEEEF
mEH) AP (35622GE) REE L
HRARE ZIKE) (B)

@)

TzEaMEAL

rEBAEERTLESME AL
BENL (CEZ2F 0 WE) $i1T
BE HENMESER EXZDR
PR REENEMEGRT—% (C
TTF ) AEZENOT

follows:

2023 2022
Us$’000 uUs$'000
FET FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances T - & ¥ K2 8L 189 154
Bonus TE4L 55 46
244 200

The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within BTITATZMERRUTEHE :

the following band:

Number of individuals

A"

2023 2022
=®== —E-=

—_ T ——

US$191,000 to US$255,000 191,000 T E
255,000% 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Cash generated from operations

() EBELEZHRE

2023 2022
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
M 5 FE=5x FEx
Profit/(loss) before income tax  FRFFEMAIRF,
(B518) 10,347 (4,197)
Adjustments for: MUTIEERE .
— Finance income — B EUWA (1,089) (398)
— Finance costs —MBEH 2,880 951
— Share of post-tax loss of —Eh—EBEA
an associate EfRI B AR 841 528
— Provision for/(reversal —EEREZEE
of) impairment of ($5[a])
inventories 641 (12)
— Provision of impairment —HEREREE
of goodwill 680 -
— Depreciation of —ME-BEXK
property, plant and REINE
equipment 6 21,290 17,746
— Write-off of property, —ME-BER
plant and equipment R E M 6 277 895
— (Reversal of)/provision — B E 5 BR TR
for impairment loss of Bz (BE)
trade receivables /B 13 (39) 66
— Amortisation of —EEEEEH
intangible assets 8 71 137
— Amortisation of right- —EREEERHE
of-use assets 7 553 549
— Loss on disposal of —HEME -BER
property, plant and REZEE
equipment 20 98 36
— Realised fair value gain —ERBEIRITER
on structured bank ZBEEIRRF
deposits EL & (2) (52)
- Unrealised fair value —EREIRITER
gain on structured ZAREIRNF
bank deposits E & (2) -
— Loss on lease —HEEITZEX
modification - 1
Change in working capital EBEETEY CRitira
(excluding the effects of REELZERER
exchange differences on %))
consolidation) 36,546 16,250
— Inventories -=F58 2,206 (38,867)
— Trade receivables, — K E Z R
prepayments and FE I &
other receivables HhpEWFRIE 8,934 (9,176)
— Trade payables, accruals — T E ZRAR
and other payables FEST & B &
HME I (10,649) 8,588
— Net changes in —H B RIE AT
balances with related R BB P EE
companies (199) 948
Cash generated from/(used in) ¥EFESE, (FFA) Z
operations & 36,838 (22,257)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) EBELEZRE (@)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds ELeRERERN HEWE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BEREEZRERIBESE !
2023 2022
ZEZ=F S
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=ET FET
Net book amount (Note 6) IREFE (Hsk6) 290 56
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment (Note 20) 518 (f¥zE20) (98) (36)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment FRiSFRIE 192 20
Net debt reconciliation (b) EFFREZHIR
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the KEHINNE 2N FEZEHE FEE
movements in net debt for each of the years presented. DI REE FREEE -
Net debt B3R
2023 2022
—E=HF —E”C
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=E73 FEx
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 29,676 47,810
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ RITEE-N—ERNEE
one year (41,662) (56,190)
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITEE-—N—FEREE
one year (1,992) (3,431)
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE XS (319) (443)
Lease liabilities — non-current portion FHE&E—IJEENHIE S (2,744) (3,035)
Net debt (EEC L (17,041) (15,289)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 29,676 47,810
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BRRE-EEFE (17,467) (3,478)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BRRE—FHFIE (29,250) (59,621)
Net debt B FRE (17,041) (15,289)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 FERFR=RME @)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) EFBEZEHIR (E)

Liabilities from
financing activities

REMEEHZER
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion

R—FREE R-FRIH HEaR HEaR
ZRTER ZHRTEE —EERERS - IRENARER S

UsS$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTErx FTEr FTEr TEx
Net debt as at 1 January 2022 WZZEZ”"£—HF—H
ZEHRE (31,661) (8,647) (369) (2,650)
Cash outflows/(inflows) RBedhid/ GRA) (19,538) - 644 -
Non-cash flow movements: FRERELE
Foreign exchange adjustments  SMEZHE 225 - 17 -
Interest expense on lease HESGENERS
liabilities - - (104) -
Other non-cash movement HitER 28 (5,216) 5,216 (631) (385)
Net debt as at RZIEZZE
31 December 2022 +ZA=+—-HZ
BB (56,190) (3,431) (443) (3,035)
Cash outflows RERH 15,684 - 541 -
Non-cash flow movements: FRERELE .
Foreign exchange adjustments  4MEZEEE 283 - 1 -
Interest expense on lease HESENERS
liabilities - - (98) -
Other non-cash movement HitER 28 (1,439) 1,439 (320) 291
Net debt as at RIEZ=F
31 December 2023 +-B=+—-Hz2
&% BE (41,662) (1,992) (319) (2,744)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

FEERRSHPRETNEREELEZE
RXHMTF

2023 2022
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Contracted but not provided for BRI NEXRER

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 760 788

Investment in an associate (Note 10) R—E#ERTZEE
(HF5E10) - 112
760 900

At 31 December 2023, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$130,499,000
(2022: US$142,075,000), of which US$94,620,000 (2022:
US$95,481,000) has not been utilised.

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

RIE_=F+_RB=+—H > &27
AMB AT A8 130,499,000 7T (ZE
% :142,075,000%7T) ZIRITTREIR
(R > Hh94,620,000E 7T (ZE ==
£ 195,481,000 7T) MARENA

FERERKRERSAGRKE HREE
FERBAEBERE - BXERE
IR BN R E B ERE
BRXEE - BXHEE - BREE B
XL HRELETRGREL L

@) TN _—_E_=F+=H1
=t+—HZzEMREALRHEBERAE

December 2023: ERRAGME

Related party Relationship with the Group

BREATL HAREE %

Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan Vedan") A substantial shareholder of the Company
RAEERGBRAR (T8EKA) KABNEERR

Vedan Biotechnology Corporation (“Vedan Bio"”) A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
LR EMBRERAERAE (TRAEMRER) —EHEBEREHEEZEZAE

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group

EMERERERAR FEBNBE AT

Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

—EHEBRREHREZERZAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) HEAEEBEXEHEBREPETNE
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as ABRAEALIRZNOT

follows:

2023 2022
—E-= ="
Note Us$’000 us$'000
M 5 F=T FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan MEEXRAHEGR (i) 2,697 9,847
Sale of goods to Vedan Bio mK A EY R E
& 0) 608 568
Technical support fee paid to [ & & T T
Taiwan Vedan TRE (if) 2,184 2,139
Agency commission income A& & R AT U B IR
received from Taiwan Vedan HElA (ii) 2 2

Notes: Mk -

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RATEEFRA REBAERKER
the related parties were conducted in the normal course of MEBMEALEHZHERTER
business in accordance with the underlying terms. BEBARERET

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i) HSABERIRE ZEXZER
transactions were carried out in the normal course of BEBBREPRET LEREME
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the 2 15 52 RO AR R U & o
terms of underlying agreements.

() Key management compensation (0 FEEEAEME

The compensation paid or payable to key management, MEERBEARECSEEEERA

including all executive directors and senior management, B (BEMBRTEEREHRER

for employee services is shown below. [8) Z #ENEFIa T o

2023 2022
Us$’000 US$'000
FET TET
Salaries and other short-term e REHMTSHHESRET
employee benefits 2,862 2,502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(d)

Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HBEREALZEREGLR
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had the following RIEZ=F+Z"B=+—H'%&
significant balances with the related parties: EEEFHAEALTZTEZLEGN
T
2023 2022
ZEZ=F =Sy
Note Us$’000 US$'000
Mt F=T FET
Current: BNHA :
Amount due from Taiwan FEUR & IR TR IE
Vedan (i) 772 33
Amount due from Vedan Bio FE Wk £ E R
Mg (if) — 93
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FE{T & E IR RIS (i) (582) (146)
Loan to an associate BT —EHEARZ
=N (iii) 120 120
Amount due from an associate FEU — B & AR
IE (iv) 14 8
Amount due to Capron F&{$Capron Group
Group Limited Limited?X I8 (v) (14) (3)
Notes: MIsE -

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of payment.

(i) The balance with Vedan Bio was unsecured, interest-free

and had no fixed terms of payment.

(iii)  The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at
4.5% (2022: 4.5%) per annum, denominated in US$ and

repayable on 31 May 2024.

(iv)  The balance represents interest receivable from an

associate.

(v) The balance with Capron Group Limited is unsecured,

interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within

one year.

(i)

(iii)

HRBRAZBERARESELR
B REE EER

HEEBEYHRZEFABIR
BB REEEEMRBA-

B —HBEABZERARIE
HABRERFLISY (T2
4.5%) stB~UETHE WER
—EMERBA=+—HEE-

EHRERR—BBMEIIZAR
Be

Bl Capron Group LimitedZ &5 8% %

B2 8  UETFELEAER
—EREE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance sheet of the Company

ERREERER

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—8H
2023 2022
Note Us$’000 US$'000
S F=T FE7
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABREZEKE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate R—E#ERTZ
®E 5,013 4,174
Loan to a subsidiary BTHMBARZER 610 293
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 171,653 170,497
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W [ A B =R IE 53,509 42,138
Amount due from a related party FEU B REE AN L RIE 5 33
Amount due from an associate FEW — B E AT
I 14 8
Loan to an associate BT —HEBEATZ
£ 120 120
Loan to a subsidiary HTHBABIZEMR 153 185
Prepayments and other receivables FE AT FRIE R E A FE IR
=18 392 391
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 2,039 4,072
Total current assets REEEHEE 56,232 46,947
Total assets BEMLE 227,885 217,444
EQUITY K
Equity attributable to owners of KRABEBA
the Company FE{LER
Share capital [N 15,228 15,228
Reserves G40 (Note(a))
(Mt5E(a)) 208,187 198,974
Total equity R 4EEE 223,415 214,202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATEEARAR (@)

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022
Us$’000 US$'000
F=T FEx
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities Pk B=RE
Accruals and other payables FE 5t & A e E M FE A
I 1,934 1,633
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,952 1,303
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIR AR 2 -
Amount due to a subsidiary FE{SHS B A B R IE - 160
Amount due to a related party FEBRIEANLRIE 582 146
Total current liabilities mENB AR 4,470 3,242
Total equity and liabilities Hn k& AR 227,885 217,444
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board AAREEBBRREEEETEINR_E
of Directors on 19 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf. “_HFE=A+AHBHMIEATIALAR
REEo
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
L ELEY T i ¥
Director Director
EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

33

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FAREEGRARRMEEE (&
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATEEGEAR (B
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MisE(a) A A BB EH)
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R RE ERHEE REET HagE
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FE FE FE5 FE7T
At 1 January 2022 WZE-_—_F—H— 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
Comprehensive loss 2HEER
Loss for the year KEEEE - - (5,958) (5,958)
Other comprehensive loss Hth2miEsiE
Currency translation difference  ERZZE - (178) - (178)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEF5IE4E5E - (178) (5,958) (6,136)
Dividends paid BfKRE - - (2,466) (2,466)
At 31 December 2022 RWZEZ—
+=-—B=+—H 194,098 46 4,830 198,974
At 1 January 2023 RIE_=F—H— 194,098 46 4,830 198,974
Comprehensive income 2EHBA
Profit for the year NEEEF] - - 12,695 12,695
Other comprehensive income EHfthZ2EUTA
Currency translation difference  ERZE%E - 5 - 5
Total comprehensive income 2 EUALZE - 5 12,695 12,700
Dividends paid ENKRE - - (3.487) (3,487)
At 31 December 2023 RIZEZ=
+ZB=+—H 194,098 51 14,038 208,187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

This note provides a list of other accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the Group.

34.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
34.1.1 Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

. equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement;
and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity's net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

EWHEHINBRZTGEMBREFR
BREMESBEK RSB AR ILF
HEREERERNAE2REE -MHBR
KB EEEMRR

34.1 EHERHESES
3411 EFESH
AEBMKBWE G AR
BEBSHAR MARUE
AT AFEMEE RN E
— B ARFRERNMAE
BiF

s FEERBEENQTE;

o WWEEBHEE AR
EENERE;

o  AEEBEITRE;

o HANEBEZRHELNE
MEEHBBEBHNAF
B &

e MEBABEMALAEE
BRENATE

RER G TR UBE B9 AT 3
AEERFMAENEERS
REe®E NP REBERBHQ
TEFE D BAIMERER
5o AEEIRBE R W EEZE
BAFEHIFEREDEG
WU B EREAH A EEFE
BILEBIFE RN WU B ERE R
ERIE IR A o

WREARRARL AN TE E A RSS2 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 341 &HEMNMERE G (@)
(continued)
34.1.1 Business combinations (continued) 411 EESH #B)

The excess of the: BHTHEE !

. consideration transferred,; . FREERME ;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the . T#E U BE B RS RV (E I IF
acquired entity; and EREGEE; &

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous . EEMEHKEEEN
equity interest in the acquired entity over ERIRRHER U B BN
the fair value of the net identifiable assets N TE B W PR Uk BB BT A
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those NEEFELAFEZD
amounts are less than the fair value of the net DERBEARHZ
identifiable assets of the business acquired, EEREERMKEBER
the difference is recognised directly in profit NE#HNEEFENA
or loss as a bargain purchase. TECRMEMEERE

BRIBEENRRARE
e -

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration s £E o1 &F 3 3R & KB IR IE 45

is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are B HEBEEMNSERRERR

discounted to their present value as at the date HEAMIRE -FTAMIRERZ

of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s BERNESERTIE IR

incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which HE IR R IEF B

a similar borrowing could be obtained from an ETRESFESREGRN

independent financier under comparable terms and ME-FRREOEAERD

conditions. Contingent consideration is classified EHEE - DEATHMAEN

either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts ZHEERENFEERTE

classified as a financial liability are subsequently MAFEZEANIEDENE

remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value o

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 341 &HEMNMERG T (B)
(continued)

34.1.2 Subsidiaries 34.1.2 1B RE

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and balance sheet respectively.

34.1.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

MEARAEERREESR
ZERENENER (BEES
MER) - HAEERAKRENR
EESHEERZAUZMDHREA
B AER IR AT ERHEEN
TEZEBENIZBUFESR
B3RS > A EREE AR
oM E AR B HZEREEE
FTrEBEAEZERS
IR MR ERIERIEERELE
FmAEARe

FERRBRBEIERE
BafAlRe

ABERG  EHERERRAR
AR ZZRERNKmIF
HiF - RIFAMRBRECHE
REELRBEZEE TR
REFBETEHE - WERQ
BZE8tHRERVERE
B LIRS & 255 B Fr A0
ZHER-

MEARRAKREDERHIE
ZEREZSINFESERR
EERER EDZEBRKE
EBEXRPEREY-

34.1.3BE 45

BMERBIEMAELEEHH
EERRENEEEH RN
HEZEHEZERE-BEE
EEFR20%E0% R ER
Ry g IR LB - A 17
RAERE REERARZR
BEUREGHEARK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 341 &HEMNMERE G (@)
(continued)

34.1.4 Equity method 34.1.4 #m %

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

REBEEDEHE KREDIU
B A HERD  HR S LN E
TAEBEERIERRE
AR BRAERER TR0
Hth2EBRARBIEEE
DERRESEMEEBA
BEE - EWSBUIEE QR
NWREEIA/REKREEN

o

MAEEEGEBEARRE
ZERENHABBEANZE
RrED SREAEMER
BRIEWRIE ZEBTE
ERE—FEER FRIEHEN
HM B AEESESIERM

=+
o

FEBEHBKGERABDZHB
REFEXFRaEAEEE
ZEBEROVED T UEH bR
FEMXBIRUEEEEREE
HRBEZER TARER
ESR TR T U 8 o # ek A BRK
REAZEFHRERLE
RS RN SN EEFR
PR 2 BUER o

AEEREBRESHREER
BMERABDZRERETREW
ZERERE - HEERESE
B AEESRBE QB
O fEEHREEZ Z8|ET
HHESH INFRERER
ML — B E QAR RKRIRE
BRIEDIERTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.2

34.3

Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.

34.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

34.2

34.3

AT ZBIUMBIRE
RERB ZRERZR AR ES]
RoMAEFHAE  URBEK
AREEIMEEZREEE B
AT BEEERERGZREMSE
BRRZEEHEIRBZBENRRE
W BEEARR

BB A E) 2 8 IR BB 1
% B BB B 2 5 1 B RAE B 4 S
22 ERARE FHBLMBE
ENREZREEBEREESZ
FHEE (QEES REAMBERE
ZHREE NANEMRERTH
ERE

DEBER S
EENNZERFANEARMTEE
EERAREZABLE2HR B -BE
DEERMMEEEDMERZE
BEERARECEANATEER
TES-

34.4 SMESIAE

(a) WEERZHENE
FEBBERZMBRERAR
BEZER DRZIBEL
BRI EERERBEZEE
(TThEEE® ) stB-RERM
BRERAUEQBZINEEE
REEEZ2REBETE
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.5

34.6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

34.6.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 34.7),
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents (Note 34.8)
in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group’s
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
comprise structured bank deposits.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.6 Financial assets (continued) 34.6 MBEEE (&
34.6.2 Recognition and derecognition 34.6.2 HER R AL LE SR
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets MHEEEERBEENRNXRZH
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which (PEAEEREABEIHE
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. ZEEOHR BR-UBEE
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights RBEERMBEEEREREN
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have EHERREEERETEER

EEEHEAENAE D ER

expired or have been transferred and the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of R [O] ¥R BF 4% 1 FE SR o
ownership.
34.6.3 Measurement 34.6.3 5t 2
At initial recognition, the Group measures a ML ERDE > NEEZEM
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of BEEZRATFESM (H5
a financial asset not at fair value through profit BELIIFRAFESAER
or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly (M2 AFEETAEE) K
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. BUMBREEEREEZRS
RATEMBEE-
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments BRIAZBEBAERER
depends on the Group's business model EEEEEEZEBEARK
for managing the asset and the cash flow EEZREREFHME

characteristics of the asset.

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for . IR A A MUER

collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.6

34.7

34.8

Financial assets (continued)

34.6.4 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and deposits carried at
amortised cost, the Group adopt three-stages
approach to assess the impairment. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group
considers historical default rate, current market
condition and forward-looking information.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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34.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.9

34.10

34.11

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3412 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense for the year is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and associate
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.12 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

34.13 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.13 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.13

34.14

34.15

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRMEE

34 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES 34 Hth & BEEHE (8
(continued)
34.16 Government grants 34.16 BIFFHEENE
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair 2 A& BT & UK B BT R B
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the F MAEBEBETRAEREEMSE
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all B TSR E AT ERD

attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and BRERANBRFHEYEFRIELE
recognised in the consolidated income statement over REHBEMENRALHEME
the period necessary to match them with the costs HEARGES W ERAE M
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants PEEEEFNEAREZHER
do not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and BXEBEETRARSHESE I
all attached condition were complied by the Group, REBE% BRARERRES
they are recognised under “other (losses)/gains — net” mERARTEM (BB WE—F
in consolidated income statement upon receipt of the KT TR

grants.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+-_BA=1+—HIEEGSEE
DECEMBER
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= = B —F EBEZTFE —EB—hHE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FE7T FE=7T FE=7T FE=7T
Revenue Wz 386,171 451,007 382,361 360,741 357,857
Profit/(loss) before BREF1SFTA]
income tax wmAl (EE) 10,347 (4,197) 15,014 22,017 19,813
Income tax expense FRSMEX (3,346) (187) (3,982) (5,340) (4,228)
Profit/(loss) attributable ZRATI#EAR A
to owners of E1EEF),
the Company (B518) 6,986 (4,386) 11,014 16,650 15,563
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 BR+-—B=+—HREEEREGHE
DECEMBER
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2= ZZZTZZ T —F ITEIEFE —IET-NE
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
F=7T FE7 FE7T FE7 FEr
Assets and liabilities BEERAE
Total assets BESE 383,510 405,972 389,147 386,539 369,476
Total liabilities BEELE (88,727) (114,254) (87,130) (85,269) (81,749)
Total equity W ARER 294,783 291,718 302,017 301,270 287,727
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Reference for Shareholders

Place of Listing

Stock Code
HKEX
Access to Bloomberg
Access to Reuters
Board Lot
Par Value
Trading Currency

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Main Board of

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317 HK

4,000

US$0.01

HKD

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

31 December 2023
19 March 2024

21 May 2024

In the last week of
August 2024*

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong branch
share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.
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Investor Relations

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and was proactive
in dispatching the latest information of its business to investors.
Information about an environmental issue related to its Vietnam
operation was relayed to investors. This is in line with the Group’s
commitment to keep up open and transparent communication as well
as ensuring that investors fully understand its operations in order for
them to make sound investment decisions.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.

The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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